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Results of Operations

Turnover

Gross profit

Gross margin

Profit from operations

Operating margin

Net valuation gains on
investment properties

Reversal of indemnity
liabilities

Net gain on disposal of assets
held for sale

Loss on litigation

Share of profits less losses of
associate

Net gain on disposal
of associate

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Net profit margin

Earnings per share — basic
Interim dividend per share
Final dividend per share
Special dividend per share
Dividend payout

Financial Position

Cash generated from
operations

Cash and bank deposits less
short-term bank loans and
overdrafts

Net current assets

Total assets

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Return on total assets
Return on shareholders’ equity
Current ratio (times)
Gearing ratio
Number of shares
outstanding ('000)
Market capitalisation

AR BEEFEZ F-ZF =0 =+~

H E A /9 4 4% 42 36,657,000 G T 5 3 40 81 4 9 i
By A N A 4 i 4 AT ] > LAF A AR 2
AR o WA BT REEY - DE R & -

2014
$°000

1,246,262
797,917
64.0%
185,056
14.8%

28,700

30,024

218,702
17.5%

$1.32
$0.25
$0.80

79.5%

159,795

604,652
776,349
1,803,834
229,363
1,547,185

121%
14.1%
4.5
0.011

165,864
2,653,824

2013 2012 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000

(E %) (E %1) (F %1) (E %)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
1,363,541 1,377,608 1,154,609 991,055
919,645 915,720 775,171 640,557
67.4% 66.5% 67.1% 64.6%
247,907 301,731 257,849 171,936
18.2% 21.9% 22.3% 17.3%
7,100 20,000 20,000 20,500
15,846 - - -
(15,968) - - -

- 46,982 49,128 29,478

- 321,169 - 7,899

202 447 632,944 282,934 199,684
16.3% 45.9% 24.5% 20.1%
$1.34 $3.86 $1.80 $1.30
$0.25 $0.30 $0.25 $0.15
$0.80 $0.80 $0.75 $0.40

- $4.00 - -

78.4% 132.1% 55.6% 42.3%
223,903 255,480 256,407 227,016
652,073 1,079,555 391,383 167,591
771,147 1,572,143 498,487 187,514
1,820,416 2,398,737 1,537,227 1,193,836
303,963 276,602 284,842 243,289
1,489,287 2,097,274 1,228,470 928,131
12.2% 26.4% 18.4% 16.7%
14.9% 30.2% 23.0% 21.5%
3.6 6.8 2.8 1.8
0.003 0.003 0.029 0.052
165,864 164,779 162,211 153,832
3,715,354 4,144,192 2,520,759 1,161,432

Note: Rental deposits paid of $36,657,000 as at 31 March 2013 previously included

in net current assets have been reclassified as “Rental deposits and
prepayments” under non-current assets to comply with the current year’s
presentation. For comparison purpose, figures for the prior years have also
been reclassified.
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2013/14 Annual Report

Dear Shareholders,

During the year under review, turnover of the Group decreased by 8.6% to
HK$1,246.3 million and profit from operations decreased by 25.4% to
HK$185.1 million. Including a one-off reversal of indemnity liabilities arising
from disposal of interest in associate of HK$30.02 million and net revaluation
gains on investment properties of HK$28.7 million whereas net revaluation
gains of HK$7.1 million for the previous year, profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$218.7 million, representing a decrease of 1.7% as
compared to HK$222.4 million recorded in last year.

Garment retail and marketing is our Group’s core business which accounted
for 88.1% of our Group’s turnover. Total sales of garment for the year fell
below last year by 8.6% to HK$1,097.6 million and segment profit decreased
by 25.4% to HK$142.8 million. Licensing of trademarks income accounted
for 8.0% of our Group’s turnover. Total licensing of trademarks income from
external customers decreased by 15.2% to HK$99.4 million and segment
profit decreased by 34.3% to HK$56.5 million.

The current weakness of China’s consumer market had negatively affected
both our sales and operating profits during the year under review. In general,
luxury and premium brands such as our Aquascutum had been more affected
than medium priced brands such as Ashworth and J. Lindeberg which had,
in fact, recorded slight increase in sales.

Our Aguascutum operation in the United Kingdom had also improved its
operating results and we believe that it will continue to perform well in the
coming year. Since acquisition of Aquascutum business in the United
Kingdom in May 2012, two new stores were opened in London in November
2018 and June 2014 respectively. With reference to our announcement on
18 June 2014, acquisition of an office building at 42-43 Great Marlborough
Street, London was completed on 12 June 2014; part of these office building
will be the headquarter of Aquascutum in the United Kingdom. We will
continue to expand into wholesale and into Europe as well. In coming years,
we will invest heavily in Aquascutum operation in the United Kingdom to
revive its image as a British brand.

China market is changing and maturing. Medium priced products will have
a faster rate of growth as China’s middle class is expanding. Retail and
wholesale business in Hong Kong and China, our major markets, will continue
to be weak for the coming few years. However, despite the current difficult
conditions, the management believes in the potential of the huge China
market in the long run.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the Board
of Directors for their valuable guidance and professional advice and to the
management and staff for their hard work and contributions during this year.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2014
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Aquascutum was founded in 1851 by high quality tailor John Emary with the mission to provide stylish protection from
the unpredictable British weather. John Emary invented and patented the innovative technique of shower-proofing wools
and was the first to introduce rain repellent cloth. The name Aquascutum originates from the two Latin words ‘aqua’ (i.c.
water) and ‘scutum’ (i.e. shield). Aquascutum plays an intrinsic role in the history of the trench coat; from the British
Government’s commission of John Emary to design an outer garment for the officers in the World War One trenches, to
the invention of the Raglan sleeve to the deconstruction and re-interpretation of the trench and innovation of modern
shower proof fabrics.

Aquascutum continues to dress the powerful, from British Royalty and politicians to international celebrities. Famous actor
Pierce Brosnan, PGA professional Adam Scott, Japanese singer Ayumi Hamasaki and Asian actress Sammi Cheng were our
brand ambassador. Aquascutum has been part of London city life for over 160 years. Its heritage is rooted in excellent
British tailoring and to this day delivers an understated, British elegance.

In May 2012, the Group became the global owner of Aquascutum. To continue the expansion in the United Kingdom,
the Group opened the new flagship store in November 2013 and a new menswear store in London in June 2014.
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9 & B E L Results of the Group’s Operations
25 [ ¥ T Group’s Operations
2014 2013 +/(-)
#LT K Wt T 7o & o)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 change
RS Turnover 1,246,262 1,363,541 -8.6%
E F Gross profit 797,917 919,645 -13.2%
| % Gross profit margin 64.0% 67.4% -3.4 pp
£ vhn Profit from operations 185,056 247,907 -25.4%
4 *& & i ) % Operating margin 14.8% 18.2% -3.4 pp
% f’éf Y A H Net valuation gains on investment
I 5 15 properties 28,700 7,100 304.2%
B B N A 2 B IR R Reversal of indemnity liabilities arising from
=R £ 30 disposal of interest in associate 30,024 - -
B R AR B R AR Net gain on disposal of assets held for
¥ sale - 15,846 -
FAE k5 1H Loss on litigation = (15,968) -
AR N T AE 25 B SRR A Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
it ] the Company 218,702 222,447 1.7%
AR Z Net profit margin 17.5% 16.3% +1.2 pp
ERFILE - B TE X EBITDA
1 51 Hiy (49 22 A1 (EBITDA) 272,915 283,176 -3.6%
EBITDA F| i &% EBITDA margin 21.9% 20.8% +1.1 pp
i B H) — B A Earnings per share — basic $1.32 $1.34 -1.5%
JBe v 39 A S Interim dividend per share $0.25 $0.25 -
JBe oK 39 M S Final dividend per share $0.80 $0.80 -
IR B Dividend payout 79.5% 78.4% +1.1pp

A ALY B 2ERE T 5 8.6% £ 1,246,262,000 i
T (& — =4 1,363,541,000 % 7T) o A< £ [
ZOE B OER R OK MM E T %86%E
1,097,576,000% 7t (% — =4F : 1,200,623,000
# o) ﬂéﬁ&bﬁ"@ﬁZ%%?ﬂ“uﬁzﬁnW‘ﬁT
: 15.2% % 99,422,000 # JT( — & — =
117,244,000 # 7T ) %%UZ@”‘HT%mz%
797917000«%75 (% — Z4F 1 919,645,000 #
L) o B EMFREFNETA% N B A
64.0%°

2% U A b 2 4E 19 247,907,000 % T 0 T
25.4% % 185,056,000 i 7o - M £ 2 % H 5
637 543,000 % JC (& — = 4F : 693,591,000 its

> FH R 8.1% 1 BRI o A 42 B A 4 K HAth
1£Fﬁ B S 484 I /0 1.4% % 240,537,000 4 T (—
T — Z A 243,873,000 I0) > G A< £ [ 14 &
FEHA193% (. F — =4 :17.9%) - B Tl A
HAEE (B H N &) W 5.3% % 239,451,000
HoT (& — =41 252,954,000 7T) > 15 AR
A A% FEH19.2% (& — = 4E 1 18.6%) ©
AREEMES KM EE R AEER183%E
43, 201 L0003 JG (= & — = 4E 1 42,639,000 it

) o AR AR E Y B ERHSE% (L FE— =
3.1%) °
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The Group’s turnover decreased by 8.6% to HK$1,246,262,000
(2013: HK$1,363,541,000). Total sales of garments, which is the Group’s
core business, fell by 8.6% to HK$1,097,576,000 (2013: HK$1,200,623,000).
Total licensing of trademarks income from external customers decreased
by 15.2% to HK$99,422,000 (2013: HK$117,244,000). Total gross profit
decreased by 13.2% to HK$797,917,000 (2013: HK$919,645,000). Overall
gross profit margin decreased to 64.0% from 67.4% for the previous year.

Profit from operations decreased by 25.4% from HK$247,907,000 for the
previous year to HK$185,056,000. Total operating expenses amounted to
HK$637,543,000 (2013: HK$693,591,000), representing a decrease of
8.1%. Total rental and other occupancy expenses of the Group dropped by
1.4% to HK$240,537,000 (2013: HK$243,873,000) which accounted for
19.3% (2013: 17.9%) of the Group’s turnover. Total staff costs, including
directors’ remuneration, decreased by 5.3% to HK$239,451,000 (2013:
HK$252,954,000) and accounted for 19.2% (2013: 18.6%) of the Group’s
turnover. Total advertising and promotion expenses of the Group grew by
1.3% to HK$43,201,000 (2013: HK$42,639,000) which accounted for 3.5%
(2013: 3.1%) of the Group’s turnover.



(A
NG
(R
ASHWORTH
\_‘\‘,

s v

[ Ashworch |7 80 4F AR AT 4 7 5 T8 <SRBT 1 450 > O3 7 % 3R 7 DA A 19 25 2 2R o [Ashworch | Y 57 8 -
TS B A > W T — R AT 4 B N BRI P A BT A R o 1 B 4 T S R T R 2R F Justin Rose
(BTITAT - SR IR A8 05 AT b R T S K B > 4 T Jy e 52 199 T Ashworch | BR BR 5 Jm 58 K

B BE R R A P TE > A BT Ashworch | I AR S B8 e < i LT B (R - B3 R R A B R > DA
B 455 VG K 55 08 A o 0 S AR B > RSB T Ashworch IR 155 T 5% Ok A IR A He 94 VAR I 14 6 D P SRR -
FE A SRS (R A JE A o

A 42 B 1998 4 1E 3U A B[ Ashworch | ih R i > 7 75 98 ~ WP~ oo B P9 M % 5 98 B R DO o

In the 1980s, Ashworth created what became known as “the new look of golf,” which not only changed how golfers dressed,
it changed how they thought about what they wore. From that arose a generation of style-conscious loyalists who favored
the fit, feel and style of Ashworth off the course as well as on it. Tour Staff professional Justin Rose continues to be Ashworth

brand ambassador, rounding out an already expanded Tour team.

Ashworth has multiple critical assets that, combined, promise a bright future: the strength of its name and heritage, the
determination of a deeply talented design and marketing team, and the depth and distribution power of the Group. These
advantages have Ashworth poised to differentiate itself from the pack while adding contemporary relevance and clarity to
the golf lifestyle category.

The Group has been the exclusive licensee and distributor of Ashworth since 1998. The retail network currently covers

Hong Kong, Macau, China and Taiwan.
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Results of the Group’s Operations (continued)

Group’s Operations (continued)

The Group’s profit for the year decreased by 1.4% from HK$224,746,000
for the previous year to HK$221,650,000 which included a reversal of
indemnity liabilities arising from disposal of interest in associate of
HK$30,024,000 (2013: HK$NIl) and net valuation gains on investment
properties of HK$28,700,000 (2013: HK$7,100,000).

For the year under review, EBITDA of the Group was HK$272,915,000
(2013: HK$283,176,000) and EBITDA margin was 21.9% (2013: 20.8%).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$218,702,000
(2013: HK$222,447,000). Basic earnings per share decreased to HK$1.32
(2013: HK$1.34).

Cash Flow from Operations

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group generated HK$159,795,000
cash from operations which decreased from HK$223,903,000 of the
previous year same period. Inventories as at 31 March 2014 decreased
slightly to HK$236,249,000 (31 March 2013: HK$236,340,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of
overdrafts of HK$604,652,000 (31 March 2013: HK$652,073,000), a
decrease of HK$47,421,000 after dividend payments of HK$174,023,000.
At 31 March 2014, the Group had trading securities with a fair value of
HK$1,670,000 (2013: HK$1,715,000).

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$43,464,000 in additions
and replacement of fixed assets, compared to HK$29,593,000 for the
previous year.

After the end of the reporting period, the Group completed the acquisition
of an office building at 42-43 Great Marlborough Street, London at a cash
consideration of GBP13,880,000 (equivalent to HK$180,440,000) on 12
June 2014. The office building is partly for the headquarter of Aquascutum
in the United Kingdom and the remaining is investment property for rental
income.
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Since its first collection in 1997, J. Lindeberg has successfully combined fashion and sportswear.
J. Lindeberg’s main collection and its progressive golf and ski collections are sold in more than 30
countries worldwide. The stores are located in Stockholm, Copenhagen, Kitzbiihel, New York, Los
Angeles, Miami, Hong Kong, Seoul, Osaka and Tokyo. J. Lindeberg apparel is also carried by leading
independent boutiques, upscale departments stores, and some of the world’s most exclusive golf and

ski shops. The brand is headquartered in Stockholm, Sweden.

‘The Group is currently the exclusive distributor of J. Linderberg in Hong Kong and Macau.
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Group’s Financial Position

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows and
banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues to maintain
a prudent approach in managing its financial requirements.

The Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2014 were HK$1,574,471,000 (31
March 2013: HK$1,516,453,000). The Group'’s gearing ratio at the year end
was 0.011 (31 March 2013: 0.003) which was calculated based on total
borrowings of HK$16,803,000 (31 March 2013: HK$4,071,000) and
shareholders’ equity of HK$1,547,185,000 (31 March 2013:
HK$1,489,287,000). The Group’s borrowings are mainly on a floating rate
basis.

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through income and expenditure streams denominated in United States
Dollars, Pounds Sterling, Euros, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. To manage
currency risks, non Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed primarily by
matching local currency debts as far as possible.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company issued guarantees to banks to secure
banking facilities provided to the subsidiaries amounting to HK$50,010,000
(31 March 2013: HK$94,870,000). The maximum liability of the Company
at the balance sheet date under the guarantees issued is the amount of
banking facilities drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries amounting to
HK$19,644,000 (31 March 2013: HK$4,476,000).
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Note: Inventory held at the year end divided by full year cost of sales times 365 days

Sales of garments is the Group’s principal business which is retailing and
wholesaling of branded garments, leather goods and accessories. Total
sales of the segment declined by 8.6% to HK$1,097,576,000 (2013:
HK$1,200,623,000) and total segment profit decreased by 25.4% from
HK$191,559,000 for the previous year to HK$142,838,000. Inventory
turnover increased slightly from 200.7 days for the previous year to 201.0
days.

Aguascutum apparel retail business in the United Kingdom recorded a total
sales of GBP6,870,000 (equivalent to HK$85,119,000), representing a
decrease of 16.4% from GBP8,222,000 (equivalent to HK$100,637,000)
for the previous year, and a loss before taxation of GBP1,061,000 (equivalent
to HK$13,146,000) which improved from GBP1,871,000 (equivalent to
HK$22,901,000) for the previous year.



MICHEL RENE

Al 32 19764 1 T MICHEL RENE | %5 A< 48 18] F 5% 5 Bt > DLSRRHE 55 MRS it BT 3% 4% o
Y TE O B A IR > R e o LD & B A R R - HE R — 2 B B R DG IR 8 AR
PR B IR > DA A B AR O B G B A 4 Bt 4 T IR S TG R38R 4 o N RLSE T E B RS
5 T~ R N TR R G BT B R - VR N L - AT BN B R b BE Y B -
[ MICHEL RENE | DA %5 Wi R ¥ A 5% 51 B0 5 35 80 5 Ok > S8 S M ie & Al 355 & i 75 2 -

Established in 1976 and being the house brand of the Group, MICHEL RENE represents high quality
yet affordable men’s and women’s fashion. French style and metropolitan elegance are the distinguishing
features of every MICHEL RENE suits and casual wears. The brand puts emphasis on sophisticated
craftsmanship, contemporary styling and fine quality fabrics on apparel for professionals and executives
in town. MICHEL RENEs classic style takes today’s men and women from day to night, and from
work to weekend.
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Operations Review (continued)

Sales of Garments (continued)

Total sales of the segment in other areas, mainly the Greater China region,
decreased by 8.0% to HK$1,012,457,000 (2013: HK$1,099,986,000).

During the year under review, the Group invested in a subsidiary with a 65%
interest in its share capital. The subsidiary was granted a license for
developing, marketing and selling of Aquascutum leather goods. A slight
operating loss was recorded at the development stage.
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Number of POSs by geographical locations as at 31 March
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As at the end of March 2014, the Group has a distribution network of 275
POSs in our operating market which was a net decrease of 25 POSs from
the end of March 2013. Aquascutum was a net increase of 2 POSs.
J.Lindeberg was a net decrease of 2 POSs. Ashworth was a net increase
of 4 POSs. Michel René was a net decrease of 32 POSs. Peak Performance
was launched in the year under review with 3 POSs at the end of March
2014.

The Group’s manufacturing plant in Dongguan suffered a decline in sales
and recorded an operating loss for the year under review in spite of our
continuous efforts on controlling costs.

Licensing of Trademark

The Group owns the global intellectual property rights of Guy Laroche and
Aquascutum. Total income of licensing of trademarks from external
customers decreased by 15.2% to HK$99,422,000 (2013: HK$117,244,000).
Guy Laroche dropped by 19.8% in term of EUR from the previous year same
period. Aquascutum decreased by 14.2% from the same period last year.
Several license agreements were terminated in the year due to financial
difficulty of licensees.

Other Business

Our security printing business reported a segment profit of HK$13,863,000
(2013: HK$12,794,000). Rental income from industrial building is steadly.
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Outlooks

During the year under review, the recession in Eurozone economies and the
decline in consumer spending in Mainland China affected adversely on our
business in the Greater China region and Europe; both turnover and profit
from operations recorded a decrease from the previous year. These adverse
factors will continue affecting our business in the coming year. Thus, we will
continue to maintain a cautious approach to all aspects of our business
activities and have already taken measures to minimise costs and overheads.

Share Option Scheme

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22 September 2014.
Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to eligible participants including directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of
15,469,879 new shares. During the year, no option was granted to any
directors or employee of the Company.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 1,600 employees (31
March 2013: 1,800). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
including medical subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its
employees in compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to the eligible employees
based on the Group’s and individuals’ performances.

Dividends

The Board had recommend the payment of a final dividend of 80 HK cents
(2013: 80 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2014
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 17 September
2014. The final dividend totaling HK$132,691,000 (2013: HK$132,691,000),
if approved by the shareholders, is expected to be paid on or around 6
October 2014 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company as at the close of business on 22 September
2014,
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Peak Performance, an active sports lifestyle brand started in Are, Sweden since 1986. Originally a three
men ski wear company, Peak Performance has since then become Scandinavia’s largest sports fashion
brand, with active and casual collections. Operating in more than 26 markets, all stores are strategically
located in places such as Are, Stockholm, Chamonix, Kitzbiihel, St Moritz, Zermatt or Vancouver. Peak

Performance headquarter located in Stockholm, Sweden.

The Group is currently the exclusive distributor of Peak Performance in the Greater China.

PeakPerformance
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to uphold
a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes that the
principles of transparency, accountability and independence are essential
for protecting the interests of the Company and maximising shareholder
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2014, except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the Code, pursuant to which the non-executive
directors of the Company should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The non-executive directors of Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
requirements at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

Board of Directors

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim results,
audited financial statements, notifiable transactions, appointment and re-
appointment of directors, major acquisitions and disposals, material
contracts, risk management, major financings and borrowings, accounting
and dividends policies. The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the management of the Group and also instructs the
management to implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Board comprises seven executive directors and four independent non-
executive directors. The number of independent non-executive directors
represents at least one-third of the Board in accordance with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors bring a diverse
range of expertise, skills and experience to provide effective guidance and
an outside perspective to all major decisions of the Group.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors as well as
relationships between them are set out in the section of “Directors’ and
Senior Management’s Biographies”.

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had held 4, 3, 2 and 1 meetings respectively in the year under
review.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The attendance at the Board and respective Board Committees meetings
held in the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

EBEZHA MEZHAE RLAZHE BEASE

wY Audit Remuneration Nomination  General
Board Committee = Committee = Committee = Meeting
AT #FF Executive Directors
B 7 Chan Sui Kau 2/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
B 7k %= Chan Wing Fui, Peter 474 N/A 5/0 11 1/1
B K £ Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 4/4 N/A 2/0 111 1/
i B Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
LN Fu Sing Yam, William 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
FiK B Chan Wing Kee 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Bk 1 Chan Wing To 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Wi HE# A7 #E F  Independent Non-executive Directors
Rk Leung Hok Lim 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
ST Lin Keping 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Jiti A5 4 Sze Cho Cheung, Michael 474 3/3 2/ 1/1 1/1
REA Choi Ting Ki 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
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The 2012/13 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) was held on 6 September
2018, all the directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee and the external auditor of the Company attended the AGM to
answer questions raised by shareholders. Proceedings of annual general
meeting are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company follows
good corporate governance practices. Voting results were posted on the
Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s website on the day of the AGM.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the
Company in writing his independence from the Company in accordance
with the relevant guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee and the Board considered that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent with reference to
Rule 3.13.

Corporate Governance Policy and Duties

The Board is committed to ensure that at good corporate governance
framework and practices are established within the Group. The Board is
responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance functions
as required under code provision D.3.1 of the Code which are set out below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(8) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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Corporate Governance Policy and Duties (continued)

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

(6) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley. The
roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate strategies
and overall business development planning. The Chief Executive Officer’s
duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities. The division of
responsibilities at the Board level is to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors. The Company provides tailored
induction programme to new director upon his appointment to equip him
with the appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group and to ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and
obligations under the relevant law and the Listing Rules. The Company also
circulates regular updates and materials on changes and developments
relating to the legislative and regulatory environment to the directors.

During the year, the Company organised two in-house seminars to update
the Directors on the new amendments to the corporate governance code
and relevant Listing Rules. The Company circulates materials relating to the
legislative and regulatory environment to the directors on a regular basis for
their information. The Company also encourages Directors to attend relevant
seminars, conferences or forums to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year, all directors participated in contained professional
development in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code.

Directors’ Insurance

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal of an insurance
policy on directors’ and officers’ liability to ensure our directors and senior
management are protected from any liability arising from the performance
of their duties.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, each with mandate to oversee
particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. Each of these three Board
committees is set up with written terms of reference. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
expenses of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Sze Cho
Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Leung Hok Lim.
The members’ attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is listed out on
page 16.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal control
system and its execution through the review of the work undertaken by the
internal and external auditors, evaluating financial information and related
disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed and discussed with management and the external auditor the
interim and annual results with a view to ensuring that the Group’s financial
statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The Audit Committee has met with external auditor
twice a year, in the absence of management, to discuss any issues arising
from the audit and any other matters the auditor may wish to raise. The
Audit Committee has also reviewed the independence and quality of work
of KPMG and has recommended to the Board to re-appoint KPMG as
auditor for the year ending 31 March 2015.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different from that
of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation presented by the
Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing
Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr. Sze Cho
Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Sze Cho Cheung,
Michael. The members’ attendance to the Remuneration Committee meeting
is listed out on page 16.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual
executive directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the directors. It would
also take into account whether the emoluments offered are appropriate
given the duties and performance of the respective individuals concerned
and whether such emoluments are competitive and sufficiently attractive to
retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

[2013/14 % #i
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping, Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael and Mr. Choi Ting Ki. It is chaired by Mr. Leung
Hok Lim. The members’ attendance to the Nomination Committee is listed
out on page 16.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, and assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and re-election of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executives. The Nomination
Committee will consider the suitable of the candidate on the basis of his
professional qualification, skills, experience and background.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The Senior management of the Group comprises 9 individuals. Details of
backgrounds and qualifications of each senior management are set out in
the section of “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies”.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the emoluments of the senior
management of the Group fell within the following bands:
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Remuneration

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

HAEEMARYH

Number of senior management

— O W

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities in Respect
of the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 33 and 34.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit
of the Group amounted to HK$4,614,000 (2013: HK$5,260,000) of which
a sum of HK$3,784,000 (2013: HK$4,105,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG
and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory audit and non-audit
were HK$3,784,000 (2013: HK$4,105,000) and HK$730,000 (2013:
HK$955,000) respectively. The non-audit services principally comprise of
tax and review services provide to the Group.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding director’s
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required standard set
out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry by the Company, that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and its Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under review.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls. A sound system of internal control is designed to provide
reasonable assurance, but not absolute assurance, regarding the
achievement of the Company’s objectives.

Management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls, while the Board, through the Audit
Committee, oversees the actions of management and monitors the
effectiveness of internal controls and risk management. Apart from the
support provided by internal audit function, the process used in reviewing
the effectiveness of internal control system includes discussion with
management on significant control failings or weakness and risk areas
identified by management. In addition, this year management adopted
control self-assessment on selected key controls and reported their
assessment results to the Audit Committee. The assessment requires
management to evaluate, assess and certify the compliance with key internal
controls pertaining to their particular areas of responsibility.

Based on the information received from management and internal audit
function, the Audit Committee concluded that for the year ended 31 March
2014, the internal control system was adequate and effective.

[2013/14 % #i
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Internal Audit Function

Instead of engaging an external firm of qualified accountants to provide
internal audit services, to put more emphasis on risk and internal control,
an Internal Audit Department was set up in September 2013.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department has assisted the Audit
Committee and the management in design and roll-out of the control self-
assessment program. The Internal Audit Department also helped the Audit
Committee to independently review the result of the management self-
assessment and reported its review result to the Audit Committee. The
Internal Audit Department will commence the internal control review for the
Group in next year.

Since the establishment of the Internal Audit Department, the Audit
Committee had two meetings with the head of Internal Audit Department
to review and monitor the effectiveness of internal audit function. At the
invitation of the Audit Committee, the meetings are also attended by the
Vice Chairman of the Board.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-to-
day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Vice
Chairman on governance matters and also facilitates the induction and
professional development of directors. The Company Secretary also keeps
proper records of all Board and Committee meetings. The biography of the
Company Secretary is set out on page 32. The Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training during the year.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM?”’)

Article 67 of the article of association of the Company provides that an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Ordinance. According to section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance, the directors of the Company are required call a general meeting
if the Company has received requests to do so from shareholders
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings of the company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the request for a
general meeting must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The request may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered office of the
Company or in electronic form at cs_info@ygmtrading.com and must be
authenticated by the requisitionist(s). The directors must call a general
meeting within 21 days after the date of the receipt of the requests to do
s0. The meeting called must be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date of the notice convening the meeting.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the Company
Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact
details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary
YGM Trading Limited

22 Tai Yau Street

San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-Mail: cs_info@ygmtrading.com
Telephone: (852) 2351 1111
Facsimile: (852) 2351 5211

Community Involvement

The Group actively supports various charitable organisations and causes.
During the year, with the assistance of The Social Welfare Department, YGM
Volunteer Team was established and joined various charitable activities,
such as Walks for Millions by The Community Chest, Charity Flag by Suicide
Prevention Services, Water Race 2014 and Walk for Youth by Wofoo Group.

[2013/14 % #i
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out on
pages 116 to 117.

Segment Information

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively the
“Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out on pages
35to 117.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 25 HK cents (2013: 25 HK cents) per ordinary share
was paid on 3 January 2014.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a final dividend
of 80 HK cents (2013: 80 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2014 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on 22 September
2014,

Share Capital

Details of the movements of the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28(c) to the financial statements. These movements
include the automatic inclusion of the amounts standing to the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve in share capital as from 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transaction to the no-par
value regime.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before dividends
of HK$218,702,000 (2013: HK$222,447,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on page 39.

Five Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 2.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.
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Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$258,000 (2013: HK$205,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and purchases
from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover and purchases respectively.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Fu Sing Yam, William
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim

Lin Keping

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael
Choi Ting Ki

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Dr. Chan Sui Kau, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Mr. Chan
Wing To and Mr. Leung Hok Lim will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are set out on pages 29 to 31 of this annual report. Further information
of the retiring directors proposed to be re-elected are set out in the circular.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contract

The independent non-executive directors were appointed by the board of
directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of directors,
see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best Practice’.

[2013/14 % #i
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Directors’ Service Contract (continued)

None of the directors who has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any other member of the Group which
is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at 31
March 2014 had the following interests in the issued shares of the Company,
its subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date as recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

(I) Interests in issued shares

% 7 B Bt By ¥ H

Number of Ordinary Shares
il N HE 22 O 05 A A ) B 2% HCfib BE 22
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests® interests interests interests
3,034,272 214,368 3,840,820 (ii)
24,068 11,624,420 - (i) & (iii)
7,476,072 250,000 7,541,144 (i) & (iii)
6,617,544 328,000 - (i & (iii)
2,075,462 - - ii)
9,346,776 819,404 - (ii), (iii) & (iv)
11,018,736 - - (ii), (iii) & (iv)
100,000 - - -
25,000 - - -

(i)  The shares are registered under the names of the directors who
are the beneficial owners.

(i) 36,690,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by Messrs Chan
Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, William, Madam Chan
Suk Ling, Shirley and other members of the Chan family) and its
subsidiaries.

@iy 2,920,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and
Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other members
of the Chan family.

(iv) 1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of the Chan
family.

(II) Interests in underlying shares
The directors of the Company have been granted options under the

Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2014, none of the directors or their
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
Furthermore, save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2014 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a partly to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity for
employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The share option scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years ending
on 22 September 2014, after which no further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares
(if any), the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then exercisable
within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option scheme
as at 31 March 2014 was 15,469,879 shares (including options for 30,000
shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed or been exercised)
which represented 10% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue as
at 31 March 2004. In respect of the maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme, the number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue.

At 31 March 2014, the directors and employees of the Company had the
following interests in the options to subscribe for shares in the Company
(market value per share at 31 March 2014 was HK$16.00) granted for a
nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company. The options are unlisted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company.

L3 Ji )¢ Y JB¢ % fi #l
i A AT B 1 Lig B OTEHR O WBRHER
Ji B¢ 9 H gruM  HEHA s mRWE R

Market
No. of value per Market
options Period share at value per
outstanding during which Exercise date of share on
at the Date  options are price grant of exercise
year end granted  exercisable per share options of options
(#71) (#7)* (#71)
(HK$) (HKS)* (HKS)

16/02/2005 to

30,000 17/1/2005  15/02/2015 12.10 12.00 13.74-24.40
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options granted to the directors are registered under the names of the
directors who are also the beneficial owners.

being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(r)(ii) and note 26 to
the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest

As at 31 March 2014, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests required to
be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been
notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the ordinary shares
of the company in issue carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company or any options in respect of such capital as at 31
March 2014.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2014.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors, these transactions were entered into
by the Group:

i

=

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i)  conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression will
be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be
made by similar entities) or, where there is no available comparison,
on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the independent
shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv)  inaccordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audlits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. KPMG have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particular of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
25 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except that the non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to rotation in annual general meetings pursuant to Articles
95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises four independent non-executive directors
and reports to the board of directors. The audit committee meets with the
Group’s senior management and external auditors regularly to review the
effectiveness of the internal control systems and the annual report of the
Group.

Sufficiency Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2014

[2013/14 % #i
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Sui Kau, GBM,GBS,JP, aged 89, is the founder of our Group. Dr.
Chan established Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1949 and is the Executive
Chairman of the Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and the Honorary Chairman
of the Company. Having been a Justices of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan
was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and 6 years later in 2008 he
was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a
member of the 8th & 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu). In 2013 Dr.
Chan was being awarded Industrialist of the year from the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001; an Honorary Doctoral
Degree of Social Sciences from City University of Hong Kong in 2007 and
in the same year an Honorary University Fellowship from The University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Chan received another two honorary university conferments:
one was an Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist
University and the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social
Sciences from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in 2008.
Honorary Fellowship from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training Authority
(1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988-1994)
and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President of Federation of
Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and currently its Life
Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong Woollen & Synthetic
Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and former member of Textile
Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as well as the Hong Kong Labour
Advisory (1985-1995).

Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA aged 68, received a Master’s degree in
Administrative Science from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in the same year. He was appointed as the
Director and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1971
and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board of directors of both
the Company and Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1987. He was appointed
the Chairman of the board of director of the Company in 2010. Mr. Chan has
been actively involved in garment manufacturing and marketing in the Far
East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and
the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA aged 66, received a Bachelor’s degree
from the University of Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified
as a Chartered Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited from 1974 to 1988 and has been a director
of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited since 1977. He was appointed as the
Managing Director of the Company from 1987 to 2006 and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from 2006 to 2010. He has been the Vice
Chairman of the board of director of the Company since 2010. Mr. Chan
was appointed as the director of Crater Gold Mining Limited (previously
known as Gold Anomaly Limited), whose shares are listed on Australian
Securities, in January 2013 and as chairman of the board of directors of the
company in March 21083. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother
of Mr. Chan Wing Fui,Peter, and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, JP, is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. She joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited in 1973 and was appointed Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
in 1983. Madam Chan has extensive experience of management in the
garment retail and wholesale business. She is a Member of the BUD Fund
Programme Management Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, a Council Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
the Chairman of the Garment Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a Member of the Hong Kong-France Business
Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the
First Vice-President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, the Chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a
Committee Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Council Member
of City University of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from
Nottingham Trent University, the United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan,
aged 63, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.

Mr. Fu Sing Yam, William, aged 52, received a Bachelor’s degree from the
University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1984. Mr. Fu joined the Group in
1985 and was appointed as the Director in 1995 and the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in 2006. He was appointed the Managing Director
of the Company in 2010. He has extensive experience in fashion retailing,
wholesaling, marketing and merchandising. Mr. Fu is a Committee Member
of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 67, received a Bachelor’s degree
in Industrial Engineering in 1970 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
in 1970 as Production Manager and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan
was appointed as Director in 1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited in 1987. He is a Director of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Travel International Investment
Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited.
Mr. Chan has participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and
Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member
of The 10th, 11th and 12th of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National People’s Congress of China,
Ex-member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special
Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board;
Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother
of Mr. Chan Wing To.

Mr. Chan Wing To, PhD aged 63, joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He has
been the Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1983 and the
Company in 1987. Mr. Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
economics from the University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive
experience in the textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Kee.

[2013/14 % #i
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA(Practising), aged
79, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
1993. Mr. Leung is the founding and senior partner of PKF, Accountants
and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-executive director of Beijing-Hong
Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited, and the independent non-
executive director of a number of listed companies, namely Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited, Phoenix Satellite Television
Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and High Fashion International
Limited.

Mr. Lin Keping, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a Member
of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal and telecommunication
research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications, and other
organizations for years and was an executive vice president of China
Minsheng Bank Corp Limited. He is an independent non-executive director
of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited.

Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP aged 69, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since March
2010. He was a former executive director of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a position he held for eight years prior to his retirement
on 1 May 2004. Before that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities
in Hong Kong Government. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Swire Pacific Limited and Yangtzekiang Garment Limited. Mr. Sze resigned
as a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Company, Limited in June 2010
and currently acts as consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Company,
Limited.

Mr. Choi Ting Ki, aged 59, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Jing’an District, Shanghai, and
Honorary Vice-Chairman of the Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese
of Jing’an District, Shanghai. In 1978, Mr. Choi graduated from the
Department of Accounting of the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He joined KPMG in the same
year and has held various positions, including partner of the audit department
of KPMG Hong Kong Office, Managing Partner of KPMG Shanghai Office,
Senior Partner of KPMG Huazhen Shanghai Office as well as Senior Partner
of KPMG Huazhen in Eastern and Western China. Mr. Choi retired from
KPMG Huazhen in April 2010. Mr. Choi is an independent non-executive
director of Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited and
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited.

Senior Management

Mr. Kenneth Hung, aged 47, joined the Group in 1992. Director of Michel
René Enterprises Limited. Mr. Hung graduated from the University of
Minnesota, USA and has extensive experience in the apparel retailing
industry.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Cheng Sai Man, Simon, aged 65, received a Bachelor’s degree from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited in the same year. Mr. Cheng has been General Manager
of YGM Clothing Limited since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and
commercial experience in China.

Ms. Wong Chau Chun, Angel joined the Group in 1990. She has extensive
experience of management in the apparel retail and wholesale industry, in
particular, in the Greater China region. Ms. Wong, aged 50, is the Brand
Director of Aquascutum and is responsible for overall management, product
development and merchandising, sales and marketing and strategic planning
of the brand.

Ms. Ma Chak Ling, May graduated from University of London, the United
Kingdom. She joined the Group in 1995 and has worked with different
international brands of the Group since then. Ms. Ma, aged 51, has extensive
experience of management in the apparel retail and wholesale industry in
the Greater China region and Southeast Asia and is the Brand Director of
Ashworth, responsible for overall management, product development and
merchandising, sales and marketing and strategic planning of the brand.

Mr. Andrew Chan, aged 36, received a Bachelor’'s degree in economics
from the University of Hartford, USA in 2003 and joined the Group in the
same year. He is the Executive Director and General Manager of Aquascutum
International Limited and Director of YGM Marketing Limited and has
extensive experience in international brand licensing and fashion retailing in
the Far East, the USA and Europe. Mr. Chan is currently responsible for the
overall management, strategic development and expansion of certain brands
of the Group including Aquascutum, J. Lindeberg and Peak Performance.
He is the grandson of Dr. Chan Sui Kau, the son of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
the nephew of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling,
Shirley.

Mr. Hendrik H Penndorf, aged 50, joined the Group in 2007 and was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (Directeur General) of Societe Guy
Laroche and the Director of GL Europa S.A.. Mr. Penndorf, trained as a retail
trader, received a MBA degree at Hamburg University, Germany. He worked
for 15 years in senior management of a German department store chain
group based in Hamburg, Germany in various capacities from buying and
merchandising of fashion. He was the general manager of the department
store chain group. Before joining the Group. Mr. Penndorf worked for 2 years
as the managing director of Euro China Group Hong Kong which is a
boutique consultancy with mainly European blue chip clients.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam aged 53, received a Bachelor’'s degree from
University of Hong Kong in 1983 and joined the Group in the same year. Mr.
Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.

Mr. Leung Wing Fat, FCCA, FCPA, aged 54, joined the Group as Financial
Controller in 1996 and appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in
1998. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters.

Mr. Ngai Kwai Yung, FCPA, FCPA(Aust.), MBA, aged 56, was appointed
as the Managing Director of Hong Kong Security Printing Limited since
1998. Mr. Ngai holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Master degree
in Business Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of CPA Australia.

[2013/14 % #i
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2013/14 Annual Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out
on pages 35 to 117, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

#E —F - = H =1 — H IL 4 E Forthe year ended 31 March 2014
(LL i JC 5 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R 5E 2014 2013

Note $°000 $°000
BEH Turnover 3&12 1,246,262 1,363,541
B4 A Cost of sales (448,345) (443,896)
EBH Gross profit 797,917 919,645
HoAh e A Other revenue 4 24.147 17.939
oAt i £ 75 #H Other net income 4 535 3,914
o8 AR Distribution costs (459,714) (482,173)
TECE T Administrative expenses (170,548) (204,317)
HoAth 28 2% # 1) Other operating expenses (7,281) (7,101)
2% B A Profit from operations 185,056 247,907
VAL E LR e R | Net valuation gains on investment properties 13(a) 28,700 7,100
HER S AR ZMMEMTE  Reversal of indemnity liabilities arising

B fE 1 ) from disposal of interest in associate 5(e) 30,024 -

HE R B 85 & B I 45 13 %8 Net gain on disposal of assets held for sale 13(e) - 15,846
ZAE 1R LLoss on litigation 5(d) - (15,968)
Bl & Rl A Finance costs 5(a) (185) (126)
1%: Bt i %t A Profit before taxation 5 243,595 254,759
FIT 15 Bl Income tax 7(a) (21,945) (80,013)
AN AR BE %t A Profit for the year 221,650 224,746
B8 Attributable to:
— AR\ ) RE R R — Equity shareholders of the Company 10 218,702 202 447
— IF 2 IRORE AR - Non-controlling interests 2,948 2,299
7 AR BE %k A Profit for the year 221,650 224,746
B A Earnings per share 11
— H A - Basic $1.32 $1.34
— — Diluted $1.32 $1.34

WA HZEHEIITEHZ WA B A BEREZ — 851 - 4  The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends
A JE 75 2 T RE 7 R 1 JE B R A 5 A It 21 45 28(b) 3 payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are
set out in note 28(b).

2013/14 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
#E ZF A = H = A — H ik 4F J For the year ended 31 March 2014
(L oc 51 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Fi RE 2014 2013
Note $°000 $'000
AR AR BE i A Profit for the year 221,650 204,746
7 A B G il 2 i W 2 Other comprehensive income for the year
(8 Be 1 4 J0 o e %) (after tax and reclassification
adjustments)
HEMRETSEBIEGZ ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
IHH : to profit or loss:
— 5 B s LA AM R 4 — Exchange differences on translation of
WA 5 R 2 T AR financial statements of subsidiaries
ME 5, 22 3 based outside Hong Kong 12,868 (5,919)
7% AF BE I fib 2 i K 2R Other comprehensive income for the year 12,868 (5,919)
7 AR )5 4 Thi K 2k A 7 Total comprehensive income for the year 234,518 218,827
b 8§ Attributable to:
— A ) HE AR R — Equity shareholders of the Company 232,055 216,522
— IR HE R 4R - Non-controliing interests 2,463 2.305
A A1 BE 2 i MK A A8 Total comprehensive income for the year 234,518 218,827
FAHEFNTHZ Wit AR HEREZ — 50 - The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements.



GOdEEBMER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B E A = A = A — H At 31 March 2014
(L4 e 1 71~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2013/14 Annual Report

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant and equipment

— Interest in leasehold land held for own use
under operating lease

Intangible assets

Lease premium

Interests in associates

Other financial assets

Rental deposits and prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Other financial assets
Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital: nominal value
Other statutory capital reserves

Share capital and other statutory capital reserves
Other reserves

Total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

2014.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

)
)
)
)
)

Ff 5 2014 2013
Note $°000 $’000
(E%1)
(restated)
13(a)
139,200 110,500
102,194 87,251
5,232 5,344
246,626 203,095
14 447,882 447,882
15 8,472 7,737
17 200 -
18 138 185
37,356 36,657
27(b) 62,357 54,050
803,031 749,606
18 - 264
19 1,670 1,715
20(a) 236,249 236,340
21 138,591 151,141
27(a) 2,838 25,206
22(a) 621,455 656,144
1,000,803 1,070,810
23 160,009 253,816
24 16,803 4,071
27(a) 47,642 41,776
224,454 299,663
776,349 771,147
1,579,380 1,620,753
27(b) 4,909 4,300
1,574,471 1,516,453
- 82,932
- 300,977
28(c) 383,909 383,909
1,163,276 1,105,378
1,547,185 1,489,287
27,286 27,166
1,574,471 1,616,453

Directors

The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June
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Statement of Financial Position
B FE— WA = H =+ — H At 31 March 2014
(Ll oc 51 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FE i By ¥ A
il < gz
Wit )& 2\ &

i ) A

F A B B

(- Pk

R Wi R i B G Al B AR
A< 3R] AR [n] B A
BaekBlEeFHY

i B f1

B AT R R B G At B AT 3K
i B ¥ A

B4V v WUR B £

T i B £1 1
T SEBL A A

¥E A
JBe A B filt

Je A« TH {E
FAh 5 R A ol 15

Je AR B A ¥ RE A fof 45

A £k 5
HE 22 A8

Ff 5 2014 2013
Note $000 $’000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 13(b) 356 647
Interests in subsidiaries 16 1,019,407 946,383
1,019,763 947,030
Current assets
Other financial assets 18 - 264
Trading securities 19 1,670 1,715
Trade and other receivables 21 1,925 1,376
Current tax recoverable 27(a) 104 130
Cash and cash equivalents 22(a) 406,559 435,233
410,258 438,718
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 65,841 44,711
Net current assets 344,417 394,007
Total assets less current liabilities 1,364,180 1,341,037
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 27(b) 78 115
NET ASSETS 1,364,102 1,340,922
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28(a)
Share capital: nominal value - 82,932
Other statutory capital reserves - 300,977
Share capital and other statutory capital reserves 383,909 383,909
Other reserves 980,193 957,013
TOTAL EQUITY 1,364,102 1,340,922

% — DR A R S T

i o

Bt ok 22

)

)

) #HH
Bk %% )
)

FATE FEH17H Z WA B R L — e

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 June

2014.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

)

)

) Directors
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )
)

The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

#E = F—W4E = =+ — H Ik 4F ¥ For the year ended 31 March 2014
(L4 JC 5 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FEAMTERRA
Attributable to equity sharenolders of the Company
e (! THREF
i k& RbBERE Bl RARE  MERE  GERE  REEA A% FOhER  EasE
Land and
Capital buldings
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  revaluation ~ Retained Non-controling Total
Note captal premium fesenve TeSeve TeSeve fesenve profts ot interests equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(WEEo8c)) (Wzkosi)n) (fsEos) (W zk2s(ci) (Hisk2s(ci) (k136 &
28
MNote28c) (Note 28] (Note 280 (Note 28l) (Note 28}~ (Notes 13¢)
and 280
RZF-ZHNA~H  Balanceat1 April 2012 82389 281688 4646 2,149 1590 383938 136509 2007274 2861 2,122,135
Ha%H: Changes in equity:
A Proftfor the e - - - - - - M MM e
LT Other comprehensive income - - - - 695 B8y 383933 5.925) 6 6919
REEATRESE  Tot comprefensie icome - - - - bW (%Y 660 2652 2306 2887
i e B Shares ssued under share
Rk optio shere B 58 1468 L - - - B - B
REFECER Dividends approved and paid i
EffIE respect of the previous year - 2g{b)f - - - - _ - %14 (19,146 - (1%146)
KEREER Divdends declared n respect
i ofttearentyear 28] - - - - - SV Y
R=%-ZHZ)=+~H Balanceat 31 March 2013
;WA and 1 April 2013 RO B 46 B 100% BT 49T 2166 1516460
Hass: Changes in equity:
FEREH Prftfor e year - - - - - SR oI 298 2180
Kb Other comprefiensive incore . : : - 1B - . 133 i 12688
FREREIEAE  Totd comprehensivincome - - - - 13 - kBT M0 2463 24518
AR Lapse of share opfions 20) . } } 0 _ B} 9 _ ) )
BAEEECIER Dividends approved and pald in
EMRE respect ofth previous year  28[) . - . . . S nee) (132691 - )
WEANETRLS Shares of a subsidiary ssed to
FeER R non-controling nerests . . - - . - B . 175 175
FhRER Loan rom non-contraling
f interests - - _ _ - _ _ _ 1575 1575
ZE-WEZHZH Transtion to no-par value regime
BREmERLHE o3 March 2014 M 09T (296331 (464) - - - - - - -
KEEEER Divdenos dedlared in respect
e ofttecrentyear g3 - - - - - SV I Y
Bt EBRER Dividends paid to non-controling
%8 interests _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ (4,099) (4093)
REF-WEZJ = Balanceat 31 March 2014 383,909 - . 5 2838 - I8 154185 2128 157447

FANEHBFENTHZ Wil AR MBREZ — 0

2013/14 Annual Report

The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

#E —F - =H =1 — H Ik 4F £ For the year ended 31 March 2014
(L oc 51 78~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W 5E 2014 2013
Note $000 $'000
£ 235 W) Operating activities
REEBEEZIE Cash generated from operations 22(0) 159,795 223,003
(B A /48 B IH Tax (paid)/refunded
— B F B ER - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (13,062) (42,691)
—EfFBUAMEBIIE - Tax paid outside Hong Kong (8,126) (17,469)
— 3B [0 & ¥ 15 B - Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 22,708 2.998
—EEFW LM EBIIE - Tax refund outside Hong Kong - 219
1,520 (56,943)
BEGHEEZH 4 8 Net cash generated from operating activities 161,315 166,960
BEFHD Investing activities
A [ E A K Payment for the purchase of fixed assets (43,464) (28,337)
W [ T AR EE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 64 2 681
W RRE B E Net proceeds from disposal of assets
REE/ G EREE held for sale 13(e) - 435,846
Wi B T Aquascutum J 4+ 3 Payment for acquisition of Aquascutum 6 - (188,454)
Wi I8 T 0\ AT K Payment for acquisition of interests in associates 17 (200) _
Al B E B AT AR Proceeds received upon maturity of other
A financial assets 411 208
C SR AT LR Bank interest received 8,077 6,877
i At S Other interest received 743 2
2 bR 2 S Dividends received from listed securities 11 12
BEEH (M) AEAEZ  Netcash (used in)/generated from investing
Bedm activities (34,358) 228,855
BE WG Financing activities
I T IR 25 4 K T 15 Proceeds from a loan from non-controlling
IR interests 1,575 _
FLE S Interest paid (185) (126)
C AT A A A HE 25 AR Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
K4 3-8 ) Company 28(b) (174,023)  (836,720)
A7 7 I8 e T 0 I AT Proceeds from shares issued under share option
JE A e 45 3 HE scheme 28(c)(ii _ 13,103
B g 2 m] B8 AT Hx By % Proceeds from shares of a subsidiary issued to
I I HE 4 BT 1% 3R H non-controlling interests 175 _
C A I 2 B HE 4 A B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (4,093) _
REERS B M 2 Bl 48 Net cash used in financing activities (176,551) (823,743)
B4 ERB4&%E My H B Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (49,594) (427,928)
RAEMZE & RB 4 Cash and cash equivalents at the
F R beginning of the year 22(a) 652,073 1,079,555
Ab W B R 2 B 2 58 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,173 446
RAERZBE KRB & Cash and cash equivalents at the
Ly L] end of the year 22(a) 604,652 652,073
BANHTFENTAZ it G AR FEREZ — 0 - The notes on pages 41 to 117 form part of these financial statements.
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1 Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those
of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as set out in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(c)

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 33.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equities in subsidiaries not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes 1(0) or (p) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

2013/14 £
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate (see note 1(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

10

Associates

Associates are entities in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investments are initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investments are adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (l)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(1)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1())).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

2013/14 £
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(2

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 1(u)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1(1)).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note
1(1)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At the end of the reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(u)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(k)), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(k).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(U]

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1())):

— land classified as being held under finance leases and
buildings thereon (see note 1(Kk));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(k));
and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in land and buildings revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Where land and buildings are transferred from investment
properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of change
in use of the properties.

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has relied upon
the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect that
fair value of investment property transferred to land and buildings
in prior years has been treated as the deemed cost of those land
and buildings at the date of transfer. Such previously revalued
land and buildings have not been revalued to fair value at the end
of the reporting period and are stated at deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and will not be
revalued in future years.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the remaining term of
the lease.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the

date of completion.
—  Plant and machinery 10 years

- Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles,

furniture and equipment 2 to 10 years
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

G)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and it
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite estimated useful
economic life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Amortisation of licences is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
to which the licence relates.

Trademark acquired and lease premium paid by the Group with
an indefinite estimated useful life are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)). Expenditure on internally generated brands
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

U

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (continued)

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 1(h)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or
valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(i). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1()).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(h)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Impairment of assets

U

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates accounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements
(see note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(1)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(1)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.



(B 3 45 B 5 4F - # L1l o€ % 717 Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 3 %65 8K (8)
() B A ()

M

B e A @8 I BUE K At 1
ek BB (E ()

fikd B8 1L Ml 48 A A% 0 ] ek
o HE B LR EE A
MREREEZEMFAR
BURCRIEN TR AR 7R iR E R L]
] o 3 {E 5 12 2 ¥ [0 A
L ¥ 7 2 R T (R A AR
PAAE 4F B2 2 Al A8 AL A
{EL s 1511 8 78 o 2 WA o

BEBERIRMEZEE S H
HE B M AR i R K M
it JE WS R HL AT [l A SR
{ELSIG A 2 B o B i % R i
SRR 2 e M 4R I BR b o
TE L% LT > BE AR 8(E S 1E Y
PR 8% G B AT Bk o W AS SR AR
AT s ) A A B B R
Fb AR IE] 2 4 R R IR
AR D M W SR R R A T
1E 15 4 0 P R A B R S 2
AT AT < B & B[] o i 5T T A
A R A1 B 2 SRR AR AR Wi e
B AT 3] < R 00 4% A R v [ o
185 M MR 2 G At 5 B S L AR i [l
JE R L B 2 BKIH 2 R R 4R
i 73 -

A

P A D OR 8 6 AR
Be A E GOk > LA IR 51
S 5 AT RE Hh B W(E BF 5 E (R
B Abh) 2 Hil T Bl R 2 W (E i 4R 2
BAHEAERD D

— W E Ko (R E A
E 5 BR 2 W) SEBR A1)

- WEARKEBEHERAZ
L8 b 2 A 4

— WmIEEE;
- AR

— AAFAEEAMERNE
NAZHE -

R g BUA B B 5 HI &l
Al % B A W IE OB - Bt Ab
AT AR R R
e MY B E T E o A R A AT
W [m] BORR (O i 2 75 A A AT 8 (L
W) e

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(1) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Ifin a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 1())()) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost s calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(l)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(r)

(q9)

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(t)(), trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i)  Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share capital for the
shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

(iiy ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses.
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(s) Income tax (continued)
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Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

M

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

M

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(t)(iii) if and when (j) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can
be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note 1(t)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the date
of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note 1(t)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and printing
products is recognised when goods are delivered to the
customers’ premises or picked up by customers for
domestic sales and when goods are shipped on board for
export sales which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi) Decoration fee income and income from printing and related
services

Decoration fee income and income from printing and related
services are recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition
of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Assets held for sale

An asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed
of together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised
in profit or loss. As long as an asset is classified as held for sale,
orisincluded in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale,
the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Related parties

1

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

—  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

- HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
- HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
- HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

- Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of other new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements -
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss
in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never
be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new titles
“statement of profit or loss” and “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” as introduced by the amendments in these
financial statements.

2013/14 &
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose
entities. It introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity
has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power
to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in notes 16 and 17.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also
contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 13(c) and
29(f). The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact
on the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement or
similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.



BEM

AT 2 E B B R B AR A
R 5 o 2% WY A T 2 E R RS R A

116HE EHI17TH o

BREBRETHIRAEF ZMMBREFME
SR HE B K R B 4 - BRI K A B AR S
WA WA R E Z &l A - FR
O 72 8 30 P il 8 2 25 JH E 2 A B

(B 3 45 B 5 4F - # L1t o€ % 717~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities of the

subsidiaries are set out on pages 116 to 117 to the financial statements.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, royalty and related income, income from printing and related
services and rental income. The amount of each significant category
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

BT
2014 2013
$000 $'000
BAR 8 8 Sales of garments 1,097,576 1,200,623
ORI RE 2 J FH BRIk 25 Royalty and related income 99,422 117,244
ER R K A B IR 5 i 22 Income from printing and related services 46,353 41,559
Gy EH A B Gross rentals from investment properties 2,911 4,115
1,246,262 1,363,541

AREWZEF + 02l I 4 W &
J5 B 52 Ty R R AR SR [ SRR o

A B A 4R T SR b R O T

B R W k25 1200 o

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no individual customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed
in note 12 to these financial statements.

JC A Be A B W 2 ¥ 8 4 Other revenue and net income
2014 2013
$’000 $°000
H il e A Other revenue
SRATRE e A Bank interest income 6,027 5,727
HoAts A2l A Other interest income 743 2
A B A Total interest income 7,670 5,729
BB A Decoration fee income 4,509 5,972
JRE st B 1 Claims receivable 5,632 2,219
& ol % Alteration charges 103 361
TR BB A Dividend income from listed securities 11 12
HAth Others 6,222 3,646
24147 17,939
H b W 2% 5 Other net income
T b8, Ui 43 5 BH Net exchange gain 1,698 2,759
HERECEEEEZ Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
(k5 18) e 45 7% %8 fixed assets (1,204) 767
B A B B A R L A T AR Net gain on disposal of other financial
assets 86 —
Ay B A R A R B Net unrealised gain on other financial
Wi 25 5 AR assets _ 264
EEEHGEZHEELEZ Net unrealised (loss)/gain on trading
KB R I g T 5 securities (45) 124
535 3,914
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5 B BL T A

5 Profit before taxation

I B B 3 A © B (FEA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
(@) RE RA (@) Finance costs
T AT A R B R 2 R AT Interest on bank overdrafts wholly
% R B repayable within five years 185 126
b)) B LA (b)  Staff costs*
FE A OB PRt #) Contributions to defined
Z kK contribution retirement plans 15,808 16,525
B LE RILAbAEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 223,643 036,429
239,451 252,954
€ HAmH (©) Otheritems
s Auditors’ remuneration
— Bk B — audit services
— BI5GB g T A - KPMG 3,784 4,105
— At A% BRI — other auditors 830 1,155
— BB B - tax services 299 385
— HoAh IR - other services 556 570
5,392 6,215
mEmMEaE N Operating lease charges*
— - hire of equipment 13 1,421
— W ¥ & (B 1522,725,000 70 — property rentals (including contingent
(T3 — = 4F 1 32,744,000 7C) rental payments of $22,725,000
X T (2013: $32,744,000)) 240,537 243 873
240,550 245,294
TE YR T T Depreciation and amortisation of
(Bft 5% 55 13(a) ) * fixed assets (note 13(a))* 29,135 28,291
FLEHER T 2 (1) /6 ks B (Reversal of)/impairment loss on lease
(Bt 5% 55 1578) premium (note 15) (146) 1,697
JRE i B 2K 2 8 (E s 1R Impairment loss on trade debtors
(Bft 5 565 21 (0) 1) (note 21(b)) 7,406 3,252
JRE Wiz B 2 2 i (L s 4 ] Reversal of impairment loss on trade
(ff 5 55 21(0) 1) debtors (note 21(b)) (4,135) (2,173)
& Py 2 MR TR 4 0 Rentals receivable from investment
% 11505,000 7G properties less direct outgoings of
(2% — =4 : 730,000 %) $505,000 (2013: $730,000) (2,406) (3,385)
17 45 AR (B 55 565 20(0) ) Cost of inventories* (note 20(b)) 448,345 443,896

* 178 A (4 BB TR AR ~ 8 2 T R S
& % N A B 230,048,000 75 (& — = 4
33,272,0007C) » A B B E R A R
55 5(0) TE 43 7l B 7R’ 2 45 8 A b o
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*

Cost of inventories includes $30,048,000 (2013: $33,272,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each
of these types of expenses.
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(d)

Loss on litigation

In March 2008, the Group’s subsidiary in France (the “French
Subsidiary”) early terminated the licensing contract (the “Licensing
Contract”) with a company incorporated in France, which was a
former licensee of the Group’s men'’s wear for Southern Europe
and North Africa (the “Former Licensee”), on the ground that the
Former Licensee breached the Licensing Contract on numerous
occasions.

The French Subsidiary then initiated a claim in the Tribunal of
Commerce of Paris against the Former Licensee requesting
confirmation of termination of the Licensing Contract and
compensation for damages in an amount of EUR1,404,000 for
the breach of the Licensing Contract by the Former Licensee.
The Former Licensee counterclaimed for losses arising from the
wrongful termination of the Licensing Contract for approximately
EUR2,773,000.

On 22 December 2010, the Tribunal of Commerce of Paris ruled
against the French Subsidiary and ordered it to pay approximately
EUR2,600,000 as damages for the loss of gross margins resulting
from the termination of the Licensing Contract, approximately
EUR15,000 for a design fee and EUR 15,000 towards legal costs.
The Tribunal of Commerce of Paris ordered the design fee of
EUR15,000 to be paid immediately while the damages of
approximately EUR2,600,000 were suspended pending the
judgment from the Court of Appeal after the French Subsidiary
appealed against the ruling on 28 December 2010.

On 27 June 2012, the Court of Appeal confirmed the judgment
of the Tribunal of Commerce but reduced the damages to
approximately EUR1,980,000 (equivalent to $19,760,000) instead
of the sum of approximately EUR2,600,000 (equivalent to
$25,948,000). The French Subsidiary’s legal counsels advised
that, although the French Subsidiary had filed an appeal with the
Cour de cassation, it was unlikely to render a decision within 12
to 18 months from 27 June 2012 and in the meantime the Court
of Appeal’s judgment was enforceable. However, after having
considered the further costs involved, the Group decided to settle
with the Former Licensee. On 25 September 2012, the French
Subsidiary entered into a settlement agreement with the Former
Licensee for settlement of outstanding issues between the parties
against a payment of EUR1,600,000 (equivalent to $15,968,000).
A loss on litigation of $15,968,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2013.
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(e) Hi B W& 4wl Z 5 it 1 A 72 [

AE - THE—H +ANH A
M AN R E R EE R AR
N (TESERD Z AR B4
1 18 /4 600,485,000 7C « A = F — =
EZA=+—H  WHEMEEEEE
OB VE U B Oy e R H RS
AN ERE B % — =4+t
H =+ H)BWEE LR -

WMEAHRBTR __F— =4 LA
TS B JE W R EE Y A i
S B AT ] B AR R
o ) RE 25 T RS AR R T ME R R A A
30,024,000 7T # [0l & 72 # kL — & — "
EZH=+—HILWESREE LT
Aj]o

W W TAquascutum J

WE—TAETR A JUHE AR T Ik
I [ Aquascutum J (i) > 4= Bk (55 9 Hh [& 2L 51
P Rk 7 RE R (i) 3% R IR g B 2
50 A B B o M T R AR AR

] 5 A% [ Aquascutum | (1) 2= Bk & i — 1L -
HEoBREEMNZME B

(a) #FHHEBENINZ B :

7

(e) Reversal of indemnity liabilities arising from disposal of interest in

associate

On 26 January 2012, the Group disposed of all its interest in
associate, Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (“HTGH”), for cash
consideration of $600,485,000. The indemnity liabilities as at 31
March 2013 represented a contractual indemnity provided to the
acquirer of HTGH if certain events occur with an expiry date at
eighteen months from the completion date i.e. 26 July 2013.

Upon the expiry of contractual indemnity on 26 July 2013, there
was no indemnity raised by the acquirer of HTGH, a reversal of
indemnity liabilities arising from the disposal of interest in associate
amounted to $30,024,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Acquisition of Aquascutum

On 9 May 2012, the Group acquired (i) the intellectual property rights
of Aquascutum worldwide except Asian Territory, and (ii) certain assets
in relation to apparel retailing business in the United Kingdom (“UK”).
Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group completed global
unification of Aquascutum.

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2014 2013
$000 $000
AR B — FH R AB Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
A A Provision for the year 24,528 28678
DA 4 52 348 7R 438 A Over-provision in respect of prior years (715) (583)
23,813 28,095
AR BLIE — 7 U DA A b Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
A JE A Provision for the year 5,252 10,872
DAAEAFBE CRFD) /R 2 H3 f (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (2,546) 967
2,706 11,839
YE %E B9 Deferred tax
7 AR A ] IR R Origination and reversal of temporary differences (4,938) (9,807)
Bt 2 S AIK 3 A 4F 1 10 ) 2R Effect on deferred tax balances at the beginning
ol T i LI 2 of the year resulting from a decrease in tax rate 364 (114)
(4,574) (9,921)
21,945 30,013
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7 BHAEMEEMMWZ A B (8) 7 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (continued)

(a) %% R ax R 5 Z B 7% ¢ (A1)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

TR AR s RS B 2 A
e A AR B AL ST ORE R B IR R Y 16.5%
(TR — =4 1165%) 51 H > B 5 &
FHAEBNATSEEFR _-F
— = — SORRBAR B — kM e R A
BLIH M 75% 19 BLBS 7 W bR 7
10,000 JG ©

A i DA S i [ & 2> W) 2 B3R I LA
AR B K 2 BATBLR G R

EFRBEBLE T SRS E TR
() 13 B B Wl i 10% T Fn Bl - SR >
JH Bl 10% T8 40 Bl A B B 1 4 sk
B F L NE—H— B 08
T A B D o il [ B AN R
JITAE R VA 2 W] 5T B 1 2 ek
S AT 42 58 K T8 40 B R BB o MR $E b
BB s R A R E OB LR &
45 [ ZH S A 42 B0 AP B BB A | AT
A AT AT B 2 F5 5% 1 T A1 B K B
T OB -

REEE-WNEZH =+ —H Ik
AN S B B S R B A RS
PR AR 2 I 7E L B B R Bl 2R
F— = T — R BLAE R 24%
WE28%> “F—WN,/  FE— L}
PLAEE I E21% (& — Z4F 0 3
Bl — & — & — A E
26% W £24% » ~F—=,/ " F—N
FRBL AR ¥ T 283%) o A8 4R E 4R
BB ) & B R A b al WhE e R Ut s
HRAEBRAERRERN ~F—N
= H = — H R RE B A E
21% (" H—=Z4=ZH=+—H:
23%) W Bl R 51 H o

(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2014 is calculated at
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, taking into account a one-off reduction of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2012/13 subject to a ceiling
of $10,000 allowed by the Hong Kong SAR Government for each
business.

Taxation for subsidiaries based outside Hong Kong is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.

Under the tax law of the PRC, a 10% withholding tax shall be
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries, however, only the dividends attributable to the
profits of the financial period starting from 1 January 2008 will be
subject to withholding tax. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant to a double tax
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to a withholding tax at a rate of 5% for any dividend
payments from its PRC subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the UK tax authority
announced a decrease in the corporate tax rate applicable to the
Group’s operations in the UK from 24% to 23% for the year of
assessment 2013/14, and then 21% for the year of assessment
2014/15 (2013: from 26% to 24% for the year of assessment
2012/13, and then 23% for the year of assessment 2013/14).
The decrease is taken into account in the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements. Accordingly, the deferred tax
liabilities as at 31 March 2014 in respect of the Group’s operations
in the UK was calculated using a tax rate of 21% (31 March 2013:
23%).



0 1 3k Bt &E
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 3 45 Br 5 4b - 2 L1t o %1 717~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 BEAEMBEBEEMMWZM BB () 7 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (continued)

(b) I 13 B 3 i A B Gt i A 14 8 1 Bl R (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
al 2 HHE - applicable tax rates:
2014 2013
$°000 $000
Wk 7 3 ) Profit before taxation 243,595 054,759
4 HRAE A BRI R 2 1 Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated
ol 2 5 L Bk B A e A at the rates applicable to profits in the
2 FEBIAE countries concerned 37,702 41812
AN ET AT B 3 2 B I 5 B Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 11,477 12,038
FEFRBLUCA 2 B IH 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (22,666) (16,650)
GRNEI DR N Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in prior
BIE 4R 0 5 2 years utilised during the year - (454)
KR BN H 2 %8 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised M7 33
PATEAE B R R 4E W HESE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in prior
ZHEERZ B years recognised during the year (2,088) (7,936)
Bl 2 AR 3 A 4R 0 4 Effect on deferred tax balances at the beginning
I IE B JE B A 1 Y of the year resulting from a decrease in tax rate 364 (114)
DVEAERE 2 G R /AL (Over)/under-provision in prior years (3,261) 384
W BL I B 52 Actual tax expense 21,945 30,013
8 i M & 8 Directors’ remuneration
R 458 58 A s < R A 191D (BF 622 %) B 2% 11 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to setion 78 of Schedule
Z T8 (2 AT E Us CA R (55 327%) 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
H161156) Sl 2 EH M AW reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

WA HM R AR E
WY 4 B A % & A6 AL 1l 3 Ak
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $'000

HIT#F Executive Directors

B 5 Bk Chan Sui Kau 30 30 394 1,361 960 1,200 - - 1,384 2591
bk % Chan Wing Fui, Peter 30 30 - - 1620 2025 - - 1,650 2,085
Bk & Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 30 30 1,22 1975 2,489 3,136 = 54 3641 5195
JF B Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 30 30 2064 2064 3690 4,459 72 72 5856 6,625
R Fu Sing Yam, Willam 30 30 1,500 1,500 3,668 4,420 60 60 5258 6,010
Bk 1 Chan Wing Kee 30 20 - _ _ _ - _ 30 30
B K 3 Chan Wing To 30 30 = - - _ - _ 30 30
W H#MAT  Independent

#F Non-executive Directors

B Uk Leung Hok Lim 160 160 - - - - - 160 160
g Lin Keping 80 80 = - - _ - _ 80 80
Tt 4L 4 Sze Cho Cheung, Michael 120 120 - _ - _ _ _ 120 120
BER Choi Ting Ki 100 - - - - - - - 100 -

670 570 = 5,080 6900 12,427 15240 182 186 18,309 22,896

2013/14 Annual Report
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w3 E (8

REA LA R SR TETERZ
S 5 HEE IV P B A O T R R
] — B S B RE 2R 26 JH o AR 4F I B DA FE 4R
JEE MR J B RS T -

BReMae AL

LM ERFBZ ALd Z (2%
— AR A B A B BN e R R
M e B E X —~WE=A
N e = 15 X (/N Sl % X R

8 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The details of share options granted to certain directors under the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed under the section
“Share option scheme” in the Directors’ Report and note 26 to the
financial statements. No share options were granted to the directors
in the current or the prior years.

9 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2013: four)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
emoluments of the other individual for the year ended 31 March 2014
are as follows:

2014 2013

$000 $'000

Wi S H AL 4 Salaries and other emoluments 3,980 2,033
I 7€ fE AL Discretionary bonuses 345 243
IR AR ) 3K Retirement scheme contributions 42 _
4,367 2,276

A 2 W) OHE f I ORHE Al ik A

AN ) RE 25 T HRREAG 45 A i R B RE — &
[ 21N NI/ = R 7S SR |
193,113,000 7T ( . % — = 4 : 543,041,000
Jb) o

b BB A 4 PR 2 9

10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $193,113,000 (2013: $543,041,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the

T AN TR B i R R
HHE i 5 SR A A 5 v A B
&

W Jag 2 ) A 2 A S AR
JEE A EL Atk v K% A 9 R I
i B

AN T A AR 38 R (HF 3T 55 28(a) JH) Company’s profit for the year (note 28(a))

BV AT B M AT A 4 W) RE £ I SRR B RE I
A B 5155 28(0) A -

year:
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Amount of consolidated profit attributable to
equity shareholders dealt with in the
Company’s financial statements 193,113 543,041
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable
to the profits of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year 4,224 _
197,337 543,041

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the
Company are set out in note 28(b).

2013/14 & #]
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11 B & A

(a)

(b)

BF JJE 3 7% 28 Fl

B B I AR 2 R R % MR AR B 2 RN
FIAE i B HRE A 945 11 218,702,0000T (-
E— = 4E 1 222 447,0007T) K © #1417
A B 0 in RE S 24 B #40165,864,000
(= & — = 4 : 165,834,000 %) wf

11 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$218,702,000 (2013: $222,447,000) and the weighted average
of 165,864,000 (2013: 165,834,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

o RHEFEWT
A7 2 SR 19 101 FE T 24 i Weighted average number of ordinary shares
2014 2013
’000 ‘000
I C AT B Issued ordinary shares at the beginning
of the year 165,864 164,779
S T AT 0 1 S Effect of share options exercised - 1,055
AR 0 Y B RESE 2 B #E Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end of the year 165,864 165,834

B )t 1 2R

B B4 5 2 R R AR BROR AR 2 R
A 5 B SR E A 45 A1 218,702,0007T (—
T — = 4E 1 222, 447,0007T) K 2 Ik
B Jn A - 3 1% #0165,874,000 i (&
— =4 1 165,846,000 1) 55 - w5
FEHCAR

2 R 0 T2 S e ()

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$218,702,000 (2013: $222,447,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 165,874,000 (2013: 165,846,000)
shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2014 2013
$’000 $°000
AE R @ BN RESE I8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at the end of the year 165,864 165,834
AN TS RESE B DL M8 Effect of deemed issue of shares under the
ARAE B 24T B A 1) e 28 Company’s share option scheme for nil
consideration 10 12
AR % B RGN HESF- 1 B 8L Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(4 %) (diluted) at the end of the year 165,874 165,846

2013/14 Annual Report
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12 4 ¥ %

A B 375 O 1 3E B A AEL R o) AR A B SE S o
TR ALE RRETHERNBNE
TR C B B 3% BLAF A 10 19 T BE i — =X
Jr A AR E 2R B P o o
A 4 8] NI S 5N AR O B0 BF - DA AL LA
B A3

(a)

B RA R B R o

TR AT B SR RE U AR B P
R WF B o

BRI K A B e B A EE i B ED R

JE fih o
Y E - WY EE A RA -

SR BERAME

N S s Pl -
FC E W E o A AR R AT BUE A
B IR T 5 50 B & B SE AR
HERAM:

nHMEECFENALERE  BE
HE KL EE N A S
FRE ai ~ A BB - R AEBL A K
E-FREMNRZES G-
AT AR B B - B e MO e S
Wy Je HoAth A SEE E - A A
A MR A B A R LA B SR AT K
RS B 36 A 30 R A B IH - A S B IR
B S H Al A S

W A K 32 2 %5 5% 5 oy R BT E AR
(9 G 1 S SO > B R S 0 AR R
1 RO AT B R G T 0 TG 2 R

I3 HR o

AR RE 8 A o B 2l R [ R
FOBR A~ B - 85 % B B AR &
AL R TR RS R E A
[ 8 I 5 )2 6 4% JF R B B E 1
W(E s 1H o 2 B SR N BR ALE - B
VT RS AT AR AL D
1 i R 1 o3 &6 2 o) 8 A ek R
JRE A T 7 2 R W A T R % AR R SR
A SEAT BURA

BR T WA B o AR R B R S
BLIE ~ Hr 88 SR AT 04 2 A B ORI
L 2 AT AT B 2 A (A 2R
B At 2 FUCA) - 23 A
1 B4 BB B A B A B 3
F o R A JF B E I i
S D 3 E o op R T B AR KO A A
B2 H B E 2 E -

12 Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

(@)

Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale of
garments.

Licensing of trademarks: the management and licensing of
trademarks for royalty income.

Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale of printed
products.

Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental income.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of interests in associates, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, trading securities, club memberships,
current tax recoverable, cash and cash equivalents and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables and bank borrowings with the exception of current tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA”, i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation and amortisation”
is regarded as including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as share of profits less losses of associates and
other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest
income and expenses from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation, amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segments sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

2013/14 &
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12 4 # #t % (8) 12 Segment reporting (continued)

(a) SHESEH - G XA H) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
BE_F-NNWEK _FE—-=Z44=H Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
=+ —HIEEE AEEKS BT provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for
BN B RS A B A 4 B ) R the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
BB (DA A 47 B IR 4 B M oy R 3R performance for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 is set
BLEEAN) > EB T - out below:

HEHK R i I A WEMK BH
Licensing Printing and
Sales of garments of trademarks related services Property rental Total

2014 013 2014 2013 2014 013 2014 013 2014 2013
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000 000  $000  §000  $000

RASMREF 2

Revenue from external customers 1097576 1200623 99422 117244 46353 41559 2011 4115 1246262 12363541
A

Inter-seqment revenue - - 2080 2068 89 1063 3640 3412 24919 25160
RRERBRA

Reportable segment revenue 1097576 1200623 119812 137920 47242 42622 6551 7507 1,274,181 1,388,701
RREAMZRA R nRA L B30 S RRBHHAR)

Reportable segment profit (adjusted EBITDA) 142838 191550 56467 85046 13863 12794 5660 6149 218828 296448
BAHERA

Bank interest income 565 604 2 2 34 23 - - 601 629
LS &

Inerest expense (185)  (126) - - - - - - (185 (1)
KEEZIERER

Depreciation and amortisation for the year (25043 (24819  (103) (119 (1585 (759 (157 (1572 (28.308) (27.267)
HEREARE/ (MHEER)

Reversal off(mpaiment losses) on lease premium > - 146 (1,697) - - - - 146 (1,697)
RBE AR

Reportable segment assets 482554 460513 587,264 527510 33862 36479 139405 110739 1,243,085 1,135,241
KEEREERBADEE

Additions to non-current segment assets during the year 40179 2633 429 165613 2,856 392 - - 43464 192337
BB AWK

Reportable segment liabilties 232881 235984 61,387 3152 4882 3976 626 631 299526 272,113

2013/14 Annual Report
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12 Segment reporting (continued)

HMESHRAN R BERA (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets
7 < HHR and liabilities
2014 2013
$’000 $°000
B A Revenue
JH R A A FHB LA Reportable segment revenue 1,271,181 1,388,701
53 # A 2 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (24,919) (25,160)
R EER Consolidated turnover 1,246,262 1,363,541
i A1 Profit
JR RS 4y B 4% 8 i Reportable segment profit 218,828 296,448
3 HB TR i ) 2 46 Elimination of inter-segment profits (6,269) (3,109)
A B U AR B Reportable segment profit derived from the
EHLASEF Group’s external customers 212,559 293345
oAb e A Other revenue 7,682 5,741
Hoph (s 18) /i 25 15 56 Other net (loss)/income (1,249) 1,078
Pr e S 8 Depreciation and amortisation (29,135) (28,291)
BOE W AL E U AR Net valuation gains on investment properties 28,700 7,100
48 1 R 5 R 9 1 Reversal of indemnity liabilities 30,024 _
H B AR R R AR U Net gain on disposal of assets held for sale - 15,846
R H Loss on litigation - (15,968)
il A Finance costs (185) (126)
R E G E Reversal of/(impairment losses) on non-current
(8 5 18) assets 146 (1,697)
KA 2 A F R AEEN Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (4,947) (22,469)
W 8 I 55 5 Vi Consolidated profit before taxation 243,595 254 759
¥ w Assets
TR oy H A Reportable segment assets 1,243,085 1,135,241
G 6 1 R B Elimination of inter-segment receivables (130,849) (55,600)
1,112,236 1,079,632
Wit 78 > m HE 4 Interests in associates 200 -
A B 5 Other financial assets 138 449
0 0 BT Deferred tax assets 62,357 54,050
EE B H &z &% %% Trading securities 1,670 1,715
e Club memberships 750 750
67 3R [a] BTE Current tax recoverable 2,838 25,206
Re B e%EY Cash and cash equivalents 621,455 656,144
KAWL Z AT R AFEEE Unallocated head office and corporate assets 2,190 2,470
BAMERE Consolidated total assets 1,803,834 1,820,416
it Liabilities
A 4y A A Reportable segment liabilities 299,526 272,113
G B TR B AN A 2 4R B Elimination of inter-segment payables (130,849) (65,609)
168,677 216,504
AR ) 1 A5 T A5 B Current tax payable 47,642 41,776
I 7k B VE A A Deferred tax liabilities 4,909 4,300
A BE 2 M R RoA 3B AR Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 8,135 41,383
A BAR Consolidated total liabilities 229 363 303,963
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12 4 ¥ % 5 (&) 12 Segment reporting (continued)
(c) Hbli 5 ¥ & B (c) Geographic information
2R A T Sy A R < () 4 4E The following table sets out information about the geographical
KEIRFEF Z WA K ()AL H 2 location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
BEEE HBEEE HEHESE AR (iiy the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets, lease premium and
WA rfam(FFErRRBERE) - interests in associates (“specified non-current assets”). The
FF 2 M I A g B R R BS 4R L geographical location of customers is based on the location at
B SR s TS IR B E which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
M OF R 2 R Hh R ) R geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
FEN AR TR E R K on the physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed assets
T % > w00 M TR ) Al R AR H A and lease premium, and the location to which they are managed,
Fr A€ M o in the case of intangible assets and interests in associates.
R HMR %P BA ¥ s Ik WL W
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets

2014 2013 2014 2013

$°000 $'000 $’000 $°000
A GR ) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 512,611 563,847 472,585 444,425
=R Taiwan 92,294 100,677 4,904 3,087
Fp B A b [ Other areas of the PRC 502,857 535,109 48,870 49,731
e The UK 85,119 100,637 65,817 51,372
HoAth Others 53,381 63,271 111,004 110,099

733,651 799,694 230,595 214,289

1,246,262 1,363,541 703,180 658,714

2013/14 Annual Report
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13 Wl & & & 13 Fixed assets
(a) AL (@) Group
HEAR
AN e B S
L LU AR N . AL .
Wik BE R TR 18 ¢t it M g CIE it
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own use
buildings motor vehicles, under
held for Plantand furniture and operating Investment
Own use machinery ~ equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
Note  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
WA Cost or valuation:
RoZ-ZRNA-R A1 Api 2012 8013 53,087 153,333 204,433 9,396 103,400 407,229
Ex M Exchange adjustments 196 147 (372 (29 4 - 17
RE Addtions - 27 28,110 28,337 - - 28,337
ERIERE Addfions through
acquistion 6 - - 1,256 1,256 - - 1,256
th & Disposals - @.021) (2040 2421) - - 22421)
ARERE Fair value adjustment - - - N - 7,100 7.100
BF-ZE=A=+—8 A3 Mach2013 88,209 51,440 161,921 301570 9442 110500 421512
R Representing:
A - Cost 88,209 51,440 161,921 301,570 9442 - 311,012
fia--%-=% Valuation - 2013 - - - - - 110,500 110,500
88,209 51,440 161,921 301,570 9442 110,500 401512
REF-ZRMA-R A1 Apd 2013 88,209 51440 161,921 301,570 9442 110500 421512
iM% Exchange adjustments 423 308 2,969 3,700 109 - 3809
K Addtions - 21 40,687 43,464 - - 43464
ih& Disposals - 4,551) (51,212) (56,769) - - (55,769)
ARERE Fair value acjustment - - - _ , 28,700 28,700
REF-WE=A=+—H At31 March 2014 88,632 49974 154,365 292,971 9,551 139,200 41722
R#: Representing:
WA Cost 88,632 49,974 154,365 292971 9551 - 302522
fili-—Z-m% Vigluation - 2014 - - - - - 139,200 139,200
88,632 49974 154,365 292,971 9,551 139,200 41722
BBy RIE: Accumulated
amortisation
and depreciation:
RoF-ZRNA-R A1 Api 2012 40974 44,676 120,953 206,603 3,906 - 21050
1 3L % Bxchange adjustments 90 99 89 109 o4 - 130
RERBHRIE Gharge forthe year 2,159 1,662 24,399 28,120 7 - 28,291
&R Written back on disposals - OH) (18,50 0519 - - (2051
BoF-=E=A=+—0 A3 Mach2013 1303 4436 126,761 214,319 4098 - 218417
RoF-ZRMA-R A1 Apd 2013 43,232 44326 126,761 214319 4,008 - 218417
BRAE Exchange adjusiments 205 163 1627 1,99 4 - 2039
RERBARIE Gharge for the year 2,174 2307 2477 28,958 7 - 29,135
R Written back on disposals - (t412) (50,089) (54,499) - - (54,499)
BZF-WEZA=+—A A3 Mach2014 45,611 42,384 102,782 190,777 4319 - 195,006
Wi Net book value:
BEF-WE=A=1—H At3! March 2014 43,021 7,590 51583 102,19 5,23 139,200 246,626
REF-ZFZA=4—H A3 March 2013 44977 7114 35,180 87,251 5,344 110500 203,09
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13 W 2 & & (8)
(b)

(c)

13 Fixed assets (continued)

NPT (b) Company
ALET M 3 0% -
VA~ F 0 Bk
Leasehold improvements,
motor vehicles, furniture

and equipment

2014 2013

$°000 $000
JE A Cost:
i 44 At the beginning of the year 4,843 4,575
NN Additions - 679
il Disposals - (4171)
AR At the end of the year 4,843 4,843
Baldre: Accumulated depreciation:
i 44 At the beginning of the year 4,196 4,293
A A T B Charge for the year 291 314
H A R 438 (] Written back on disposals - (411)
INCERS At the end of the year 4,487 4,196
Y L Net book value:
AR At the end of the year 356 647
SR E X TN R (¢) Fair value measurement of investment properties
() AL ()  Fair value hierarchy

TREVNAEBRHEY XL The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s

FolH > #% % BE W) SE T o
R 58 v AL M GH R 20 B
T 7 i T R A YE I SBR[ 4
SCE AT 2 =/ o E
B i s RERE D B2
Iy W N AGE T B
iy A BOHE 2 R R
R

— BN (E R AR
i A BB (B & R 8T
HERABRGERTSE 2
ABABBE FFREZL R
{H

— B RRAGME R A
A SR (B OR BE 2 21 58 — 2%
Z B A R R
il R A A LA ) R
= PaV/AD IV NCIE k-3 1§
T A M R T 8 R
B

— B EHRAGE A ERRA]
{E-3 € T /NP
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investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1inputsi.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

—  Level 3valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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(c) REWHEN MG 2= (H)
() AAR(EZEHE)

U

13 Fixed assets (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A E Group

&N P HE S Recurring fair value
ZARE measurement

BEWE: Investment properties:

- L3 - i ~ Industrial — Hong Kong

BEECEF-NE=ZA=1+—
Hoak 4 B2 - TR 58 — BB EE AR
AR R 3 YA NE R
R AR A BUR 2
TP FE PR RS I i 0 R TR AR
FoAH SR 2 T RS

AEETABREY R - F
—MAEZA = HEBfE -
fili (6L o 28 Sr B R R S S AT AR IS
BB R A AR A FEAT S A
AmEBNRmMETERT A
O H A i PR O il ) 2
i B K R R RSB o s R
KH L E E A B R
i it L M1 BN &5 2R o

(i) A B =8N R EF RN E R

(i)

) e RE-Z—NE=ZHA=+—HW
—PAE=H AR R A 3
=+—H Fair value measurements
i A i i as at 31 March 2014 categorised into
Fair value at
31 March B W W=
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
139,200 - - 139,200

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 March 2014. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The management
have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of each reporting period.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Al Bl
A 1 B LN § T HE SF- 3
Valuation Unobservable i Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
BEY % Investment properties HiELRE MFE R 10% 24%
- T¥-Fk — Industrial - Hong Kong Direct Ireg & to 36%
comparison Discount on
approach quality of the
buildings
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13 W 2 & & (8)
(c) HBW N R A7 (4)

(i)

AR =8 e fERt R AE R ()

R EEN B EY R A RHE
T 2 %5 A B [ AT AR BGORR Y 8
B BP0 BA T R (E 2
i E o

o L4 Lk A s A B
Il > TR E T BT 8 A
(DR SRR TR RPN
TR M ESA A ER R BT -

BEVE W) B 002 Ao 80
R 75 2 980 10 35 A (2 1 9
RN TIN

(d) 7K 28 B ¥y S Z Hi I i 18 26 Ak 16 A A7

13 Fixed assets (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong
is determined on an open market value basis, by making
reference to the comparable sales evidence in the relevant
locality.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will result
in a high fair value measurement.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised
in the line item “Net valuation gains on investment properties”
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties of the

mF Group is as follows:
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
W In Hong Kong
— - medium-term leases 153,795 126,325
s LA A b Outside Hong Kong
— B - medium-term leases 24,527 25,023
—EHME — short-term leases 9,131 9,473
187,453 160,821
% : Representing:
& b F Land and buildings 43,021 44.977
BEY % Investment properties 139,200 110,500
182,221 165,477
ML EHEREAH Interest in leasehold land held for
Z R R R own use under operating lease 5,232 5,344
187,453 160,821

2013/14 Annual Report
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13 W & & & (8)

(e)

f

(2)

B 171 ) B & A W ek i

TETE—~T4HENA TR AL
HEREYWET - NBLE =T %
$ 10 {1 2% 420,000,000 7C » F 4 {U1E
439,800,0007C ~ FHBREL2E2E 3,954,000
JUAE o Ui %5 1R #H A 15,846,000 0T 5 EL Y
CE-CZHEZA=E-HIEFEEN
AR 1R RAEFEADR -

HESERE ARZREWEN L

L K A8 5 Al % 5 383,933,000 JC B
B AR B % A o

13 Fixed assets (continued)

(e)

Net gain on disposal of assets held for sale

On 28 June 2012, the Group disposed its investment properties
with carrying value of $420,000,000, at a cash consideration of
$439,800,000 to an independent third party. After netting off
professional fees of $3,954,000, a net gain of $15,846,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

Upon completion of the disposal, land and buildings revaluation
reserve in respect of these investment properties amounted to
$383,933,000 was transferred to retained earnings.

REHEEYHEZAFFEWF - (f) Details of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:
FRE &y 2 Properties held for investment
Term of

b HuiJi% Al Location Existing use lease
JUBE #r i  H 95 fy Tk & 1 G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
1895 T P I San Po Kong, Kowloon shops
JUHE b Y B 7 4 5% b /N i UnitB, C,D, GandHon 7/F, Offices, Medium
e I T 3 K L 7 4 T K& and Car Parking Space factories and
BC D GMH=E - g5 No. 8 on 1/F, warehouses
e 1 #8585 45 HE AL Wah Shun Industrial Building,

4 Cho Yuen Street, Yau Tong,

Kowloon
JUBE B il [ 5 fir 28 9% T ' Unit Nos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
) Br TR 5L 6 4 Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on 8/F,
2 RMAE 81 Ko=E Lee Sum Factory Building,

DL A B T E A
ALEBMUKLEHEHE L BEY
M — L —E2mW4E BA
RES 4 76 2 ) B AR A0 > T Wy B A
e K 3 AT ER B E o A JHAR A B
PR E SOR A -

DL 7 AL R A (H 7R A 5 T 4
AREYRERZYE HREE L
BEY -

AR AR R AN R BR 2 KE LR
H A% M i 2 fr AR B R A BN T

28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon

(g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to two
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment properties are classified as
investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

2014 2013
$°000 $000
— AR Within 1 year 1,865 2,680
—AEEE AN After 1 year but within 5 years 1,029 642
2,894 3,322
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14 I & &

14 Intangible assets

WA :
§F - AE A —
5 B (O 3 56 (039

N EF - ZHEEAET—H

R=%— = —
B 11 6 (Y 2 ) 50

REE—-NE=ZA=+—H

K il e 6 B
1 A
“EA-CAENA—-R R
R -ZHFEZA=Z1—H

R=%— = —
B 11 6 (O R 2) 50

Cost:
At 1 April 2012
Additions (note (c))

At 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013
Write off upon termination (note (a))

At 31 March 2014

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:

At 1 April 2012 and
31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013
Write off upon termination (note (a))

REE—-NE=ZA=+—H

I i ¥ ¢
AE-NE=ZA=+—H

Ro-EF-=F=A=+—H

(@ MBE_F-NE=ZA=+—HI
HERE S WM RR A N BAS SR A IR A
B 1 ok o TR 0L > LA % 2 5 G
T AE s 1R © 22 TS -

(b) T[Aquascutum] ¥ % &% [ Guy Laroche]
7R B AL A AT i R R 0 I AR B
& FF R M RE S 1) H AR -

(c) M_FE—"4MHEHAILH > AEMIK
Wi [ Aquascutum | i 4 Bk (HR P 1 17 A
SN B R RE > L DLAE IR H A
ft{E 159,558,000 T (Fff 5 55 6 16) K /&
A2 R S 2E R H15,965,00000 81 ©

2013/14 Annual Report

At 31 March 2014

Net book value:
At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

(@)

(b)

(c)

A4

Group
it et ¥ B Hm
Licence Trademarks Total
$°000 $°000 $°000
9,364 282,359 291,723
- 165,523 165,523
9,364 447,882 457,246
9,364 447,882 457,246
(9,364) - (9,364)
- 447,882 447,882
9,364 - 9,364
9,364 - 9,364
(9,364) - (9,364)
- 447,882 447,882
- 447,882 447,882

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the owner of the licence
gave a formal notice for termination of the licence agreement to
the Group and as a result, both the cost and accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss were fully wrote off.

The Aquascutum and Guy Laroche trademarks are considered
to have indefinite useful lives and are accounted for in accordance
with accounting policy note 1(j).

On 9 May 2012, the Group acquired the intellectual property rights
of Aquascutum worldwide except Asian Territory, which was
carried at fair value at the acquisition date of $159,558,000 (note
6) with legal and professional fees incurred amounting to
$5,965,000.
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14 B & & (8) 14 Intangible assets (continued)
(d) J WLHT w480 4 2 B 0 AE 3 (d) Impairment tests for trademarks with indefinite useful economic life
[ Aquascutum] 7 42 % [ Guy Laroche The Aquascutum and Guy Laroche trademarks service the
P A2 43 Al HE 1 A T Aquascutum | ) & Aquascutum worldwide operations and Guy Laroche worldwide
BREEF I [ Guy Laroche | i & R 2675 operations, respectively, which are separately identifiable.

IR A §IE

2014 2013

$’000 $°000

[ Aquascutum | i 12 Aquascutum trademark 345,832 345,832

[ Guy Laroche | /i 12 Guy Laroche trademark 102,050 102,050

447,882 447,882
[ Aquascutum] 7 #Z %% [ Guy Laroche The recoverable amount of the Aquascutum and Guy Laroche
PEAZE 2 ] i o] 42 8 )5 F A R AE E TR - trademarks are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
whOA (PR AR A T L oE Y L AE B These calculations use cash flow projections based on a five-year
G ETEE - AR R AR &R period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the five-
i ME R T o I AT o] R R e year period are extrapolated without any growth rate. Management
LB R L o B E Tl A A E believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
EHREWMAAEAT AT RES > N assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
o S I T (R 0 S ) i [ 4 A o not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

(e) wlHfliHMEMEMFIRMHEZEFZEMK : (e) Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:
[ Aquascutum ] % 2 [ Guy Laroche ] %

Aquascutum trademark  Guy Laroche trademark

2014 2013 2014 2013

HEx Growth rate 0% 0% 0% 0%

HME MR Gross contribution rate 93% 92% 78% 79%

8 & Discount rate 8% 10% 8% 1%
CEINERSE SORCE ST S Rk Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
RZEMEEMERKBERRE rate based on the past performance and its expectations on
TRz B ERRTET SR Z M market development. The discount rate used is the weighted

HE - 8 4 A o average cost of capital of the licensing industry.
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16

AEEEN 15 Lease premium
7 45 19
Group
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
W A Cost:
EH At the beginning of the year 9,424 9,833
[ 50, 9 % Exchange adjustments 713 (409)
R At the end of the year 10,137 9,424
Bl WA I Accumulated impairment losses:
FE 4 At the beginning of the year 1,687 _
B bt 3 4% Exchange adjustments 124 (10)
(B Js 48 438 [ Reversal of impairment losses (146) -
A e 18 Impairment losses - 1,697
R At the end of the year 1,665 1,687
Y i 354 Net book value:
R At the end of the year 8,472 7,737

HH R HE BT 45— B 2 W) 2 O IR
— T 3 2 H B RE T SO AT 2 BORE - A %
W B 2 mD R AL % 36 A RE I A
ERMETT - MA% - Fuk 8
T A T B A A R AT AC AR
T B AR AR P RS T (e 4R B R -

T & E W % 52 (E M Amadeus Génivalor
HEAT A (E > AT B R A Ak (E
1 b B BRI BB o AR T 2 IR AT
N Y NR T A G e D
Wl B3 R 4 BLRH P OME A AL 4 R 8 4E
] 2 22 5 28 o iy 7% LB RE & 0% mT i [l
WA M, R _F —-WFE=HA
= H 1k B RO N B 8 E 1R
1] £ 146,000 G ©

W 8 2 ) BB

LLease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to obtain
the right to lease a property in France. In the event that the subsidiary
vacates the property, the subsidiary would be entitled to sell the right
to the lease to the next tenant. Accordingly, the lease premium is
considered to have an indefinite useful economic life and is carried at
cost less impairment losses.

A valuation of the lease has been performed by an independent valuer,
Amadeus Génivalor, with recent experience in the location and category
of the lease being valued. The valuation is performed with reference
to the current financial and economic condition. The recoverable
amount is estimated by discounting the effect of the difference between
the current rent and rental payable by tenant for a period of 8 years.
A reversal of impairment loss of $146,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2014 as a result of the increase in the recoverable
amount of the lease premium.

16 Interests in subsidiaries

I b B > AR
A i B i 2 i

W : 08 S 4R

2013/14 Annual Report

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Less: Impairment losses

A 4w
Company

2014 2013
$°000 $'000
64,503 10,503
1,020,004 1,000,980
1,084,507 1,011,483
(65,100) (65,100)
1,019,407 946,383
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W& 2w B & (a)

Bk T — HE BB 2 7 2 EKIE (LAARE BLR
04JE ( = F — Z4F:04)8) 5t B) &
161,948,000 JC (& — = 4E : 166,855,000
JG) Z A o LA IRE s B R AT B R I
TG D K T E R N e L
Ko JREASH o 2 W] 2 K TE TE R AR A
RKH—FRNANEGgHEE-

PRE T —FE=H =+T—HILFER
A ) 5 5 B B A BR A W] 54,100,000
JREH 34T 9 5 A L8 454,100,000 7
M A Aramis International Limited # 1k 5 ffit
%l H AR R -

WE L -=ZF=A=+—HILFEEZRN
HFEARAFAMAHEREGRC B ALA
LY i i) AR

A 4 ] JB 2 ) Sl 9 TR O 42 IR B A

% B A R 2 O& R EE R R 5E 116
HEHII7H -

BB A ) HE 4R

16 Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

17

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment except for an amount due from a
subsidiary of $161,948,000 (2013: $166,855,000) which is interest
bearing at 0.4% (2013: 0.4%) per annum. The amounts due from
subsidiaries are not expected to be settled within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company subscribed
54,100,000 newly issued ordinary shares in Far East Gate Limited at
a consideration of $54,100,000 and disposed of all equity interests in
Aramis International Limited upon the deregistration.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, equity interests in Bentwood
Limited were transferred from the Company to a subsidiary of the
Company.

The subsidiaries of the Group do not have material non-controlling
interests.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 116 to 117.

Interests in associates

JBE A

PE Rk Bl 24 R E B ELG M O
BEARR - E-ME=A=+—HM
FEFECIATTS o BRIESCE S A AR B
BUJ BT 45 149 e 3 0y 2 PR

B A5 B R

4R M
Group
2014 2013
$000 $'000
Share of net assets 200 -

The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2014, which are unlisted
corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available, are as
follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Aggregate information of associates:

T % A A A e B R R ) AR T

2014
$°000

Aggregate carrying amount of associates in the
consolidated financial statements 200

7 42 [ B A T A D Y AR
— A4 4R

— oAt 2 T R 4R

— 4 T i 4 A AR

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of associates’

— Loss for the year -
— Other comprehensive income -
— Total comprehensive income -

2013/14 & #]
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17 B & 2 &) B 22 (850

18

19

17 Interests in associates (continued)

PR 2
Percentage of ownership interest
ok A 3% S e R ALEH
RERY  BRBAE BB B 42 AR B )85 4 W)
Placeof  Particulars of Group’s WA HH FEEHE
BEADAR incorporation  issued and paid effective Held by Held by a Principal
Name of associate and business up capital interest the Company subsidiary activity
Al R AR A RA A s Investment
NF Systems Holding Limited Hong Kong $100,000 50% - 50% holding
Al R SA A T ik LRSS
NF Systems Limited Hong Kong $1 50% - 50% Dormant
bl B A B S A DUBR R &R IR R AR A All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method
WMHWMERTAR R AAREERE - in the consolidated financial statements and considered to be not
material.
Hfib W % & & 18 Other financial assets
ARG Y N/ |
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
E ] Non-current
A 2 3 W& B Held-to-maturity debt securities
— IF LT (B 5E 28 29(R)(i) TH) — unlisted (note 29(f)(ii)) 138 185 _ _
i Current
mAesm TR Derivative financial instruments
— 1 WA A (] — forward foreign exchange
(B 5 26 29(R)(i) JE) contracts (note 29(f)(i)) - 264 _ 264
FEHENBZER 19 Trading securities
AL H y /|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
TR A R Listed equity securities
Ei7 /NI ) at fair value
— T Uk (B 5 %5 29(0() 6) - in Hong Kong (note 29(f)(i)) 1,670 1,715 1,670 1,715

2013/14 Annual Report
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20 i+ | 20 Inventories
(a) WEBEABRKEAZGER B : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:
AR
Group
2014 2013
$000 $'000
JEAE R Raw materials 11,501 11,086
TE 8 i Work in progress 2,576 3,675
AL Finished goods 222172 221,579
236,249 236,340
(b) MEFR % P50 Cal AH 7 017 & # (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
A mE : and included in profit or loss is as follows:
745
Group
2014 2013
$°000 $000
CEAFEZIETME Carrying amount of inventories sold 463,945 431,242
17 5 A Write down of inventories 6,918 18,258
AE B0 8 [ Reversal of write-down of inventories (22,518) (5,604)
448,345 443,896

15 T3 4 1A 1 22 77 SR T 1
2 1) 2 P T 51 B A 0
it 5 L8 (380

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years arose
due to anincrease in the estimated realisable value of certain garments
as a result of a change in consumer preferences.

21 Trade and other receivables

21 ME WUk sk B 3 flb R A

A4 AR 7
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
(E )
(restated)
TN Trade debtors 79,362 108,511 - -
T - e R S A Less: Allowance for doubtful
(Bt 53 55 21(b) JH) debts (note 21(b)) (15,758) (12,708) - _
63,604 95,803 - -
4~ AT Deposits, prepayments and
o Ath 8 Ui K other receivables 70,623 54 573 1,175 626
JRE Wi B N ] #RO0E Amounts due from related
(Bt 5 55 32 1) companies (note 32) 3,614 15 _ _
R Club memberships 750 750 750 750
138,591 151,141 1,925 1,376

% & i & 4% £ 750,000 70 ( & — = 4F
750,000 G ) 4 4 [ Fe A N | BT A ORE IR iR
SR B L b I AT R TE A BT — 4 A i Tl B

All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables,
apart from club memberships of $750,000 (2013: $750,000), are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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21 ME MR 3k e JC b ME Bk (s0)

(a) JE 85 H7
B A A IR B O K (FEA
JFE Wi R T B HE A i K AR 4% 8 5 E
Lo KEAT R BE MR A < BRI AT AT

21 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors (which are included in the trade and other receivables),
based on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts,
is as follows:

— AN Within 1 month
—F “ffH 1 to 2 months
TE=MA 2 to 3 months
o = A Over 3 months

A FEBOR 2 — R R
B 5 26 29(a) JH o

JE W B 3 2 ik A

A s R 2 (s TR R R B
U T DARE 8k R IF A 5 B A5 Y [l
B H 2 A REE R > A UE LR
I E R 4R T 2 7 TR AT R K B (2
B4 B SE 28 1)) )

RN BERR M 2 BB (B R E
S B R ) W

(b) ()

AL E

Group
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
42,992 63,501
5,707 9,575
11,348 13,004
3,557 9,723
63,604 95,803

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note 1())(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

A 4 1

Group
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
i A 4] At the beginning of the year 12,708 12,112
[E 53, 5] B« Exchange adjustments 708 (337)
L il 52 ok (L s 48 (BT 35 %5 5(c) H) Impairment losses recognised (note 5(c)) 7,406 3,252
T (B 5 48 138 8] (FM 3345 5(c)JH)  Reversal of impairment losses (note 5(c)) (4,135) (2,173
B A W] i Bl 2 4 BE Uncollectible amounts written off (929) (146)
AR At the end of the year 15,758 12,708

W oE—WEZA=+—H &E
IS R i B 3K 4 3,877,000 00 (& — =
4 18,725,000 %) e 5E £y AR Bl I (E -
5% 5 W A B R 2 W(E 2 E i K B
MBI MR FEF AR R
J& BE Al o TE M0 AT i IR % 4 E U 3K
Z iy e B B RR 2 H E Bt
U 188 5 5 3,807,000 7C (& — = 4F ¢
7,086,000 7G) °

2013/14 Annual Report

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s trade debtors of $3,877,000
(2013: $8,725,000) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only
a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
$3,807,000 (2013: $7,086,000) were recognised.
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21 ME MR 3k e JC b ME B AR (s0)

(c)

21 Trade and other receivables (continued)

b i E 2 JE R Ak (¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired
S 4 R R ok 4R kA 2 W 2 M Uk The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually
MR Z BRI - AT N T - nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:
A4
Group
2014 2013
$’000 $°000
oK 39 o e (E Neither past due nor impaired 48,412 75,130
i 0k — 18 A Less than 1 month past due 10,407 7,735
i — % =\ A 1 to 3 months past due 1,826 6,532
i 1) 48 4 = A More than 3 months but less
B+ Z @A than 12 months past due 2,843 4,767
w A A More than 12 months past due 46 _
15,122 19,034
63,534 94,164

B 0 7 H0) B9 (R < R i B R 2 I
AT R B B AR -

8 0 H 0 i (e 2 M Wi ok B 22 4%
NEFAR ZEEFRALEZ
5 SR Bk RAT o AR 4R TE A8 B - R
(ER-SCEN AN N IR
WA By ar 2 Bolkc |l i BEE A A
B ZEUE M S5 5 B R H 0 HEE A o

2 HERBAEFHD

(a)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22 Cash and cash equivalents

Be R FHYEE: (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
¥ 3L | ¥ /AN
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $000 $000 $'000
SRAT K H At B B Deposits with banks and
B 2 A7 3K other financial institutions 385,473 420,511 370,082 406,688
SRAT A K L Bl 4 Cash at bank and in hand 235,982 235,633 36,477 28,545
HEAMERNI R Z Cash and cash equivalents in
W& KBS EY the statements of
financial position 621,455 656,144 406,559 435,233
SRATE S (MR 55 2478H)  Bank overdrafts (note 24) (16,803) (4,071)
AEH SR ERIR Cash and cash equivalents in
2 BE KB E the consolidated cash flow
(7] statement 604,652 652,073

FFAB S KRB S EED NGB L
#H %9 40,012,000 00 ( . & — = 4 ¢
64,602,000 76 ) » £ A% 4 [ it [ 4R
TR N R WA K - (e B A &
4 BE 5% Ah > ZE 8 SF AR 1B BORT i
B A1 R 4 i -

Included in the balance of cash and cash equivalents is an amount
of approximately $40,012,000 (2013: $64,602,000) representing
Renminbi Yuan deposits placed with banks in the PRC by the
Group. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC government.
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22 B ERBEEFEHEY (B) 22 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(b) A5 B Bt 1T vas AU i A 2 AR g E B 2 B (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from
sEmA operations:
B 5 2014 2013
Note $°000 $°000
(FE 51)
(restated)
5 BE i v Profit before taxation 243,595 254,759
FEIHE - Adjustments for:
AT FLB WA Bank interest income 4 (6,927) (5,727)
oAl A S A Other interest income 4 (743) )
i EZ R E A Dividend income from listed securities 4 1) (12)
HEREEEZBEHR Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
(i %) V5 38 fixed assets 4 1,204 (767)
WAL B E Net gain on disposal of other
Wi 55 T BH financial assets 4 (86) _
Al B S R E A Net unrealised gain on other
A B R A5 1T AE financial assets 4 - (064)
FEEMGEZEHEEZ Net unrealised loss/
KB H (gain) on trading
(i 4 ) V5 38 securities 4 45 (124)
fil A Finance costs 5(a) 185 126
e Depreciation 13(a) 28,958 28,120
FefE A M ZHE L Amortisation of interest in leasehold
HE £ 1 &5 land held for own use 13(a) 177 171
W& E A E Net valuation gains on
W %5 5 A investment properties 13(a) (28,700) (7,100)
R B E Net gain on disposal of assets
g TR ] held for sale 13(e) - (15,846)
TE#E 2 R W  (Reversal of)/impairment loss on
i 18 lease premium 5(c) (146) 1,697
T 58, it £ Foreign exchange gain 7,211 (4,718)
WEE ST Changes in working capital:
& W Y () Decrease/(increase) in inventories 91 (21,354)
Tl 4 #e 4 T FEAS 38 Increase in rental deposits
and prepayments (491) (16,958)
JHE Wi B R > (3 ) Decrease/(increase) in trade debtors 34,423 (15,190)
Yie 4~ FEAT I R AL E U3k (Increase)/decrease in deposits,
(38 m) Wb prepayments and other receivables (17,200) 1,401
JARE iz B 2 W) S Increase in amounts due from
related companies (3,599) (15)
JRE A5 B 3R (i 2b) 7 388 (Decrease)/increase in trade creditors (17,314) 14,891
JRE AN 22 4 ek D Decrease in bills payable (168) (1,075)
Al A R % M T (Decrease)/increase in other payables
2R 8 8 m and accrued charges (80,520) 14,743
JRE A B 2 W) ek D Decrease in amounts due to
related companies (189) (2,853)
REEREAZ B & Cash generated from operations 159,795 223,003

2013/14 Annual Report
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23 ME 4F Bk % B 3 flb BE A 5%

23 Trade and other payables

A4 Y |
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
JRE A S % Bills payable 1,792 1,960 1,792 1,960
JRE A R K Trade creditors 30,836 43,900 - _
32,628 45,860 1,792 1,960
At 1 AT K % R Ak Other payables and accrued
2 ] charges 126,185 176,547 7,381 10,489
981 PR W B Indemnity liabilities
(Fff 7F 56 5(e) 1) (note 5(e)) - 30,024 - 30,024
JE A5 BT JB 2 W A Amounts due to subsidiaries - _ 56,500 2,016
JE A5 B 2\ W) A Amounts due to related
(i 5% 55 32 9H) companies (note 32) 1,196 1,385 168 299
160,009 253,816 65,841 44,711

Ufﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ% I B KL At ASF TR 0 R —
R

O A B R s O 2 R
WREF18SM AR EMWH & —F — =4F
L H N H) WA AL R B
B e R 0 i B T G R R A o b
N A 2 AR R AR 8 H 30,024,000
*BA:%*MEEHEJr*EIJLEEE’J
A EERMERAIR-

JE A B S A 7?K
8 0B Ry 1E

B ARF SR B B B A 52 9 (L 435 A B AT R 3 &%
JFE A 18 A 3K ) B AR S U OR B 2 R
WRE BT

Ty MR o B B i

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year.

The indemnity liabilities represented a contractual indemnity provided
to the acquirer of HTGH if certain events occur with an expiry date at
eighteen months from the completion date i.e. 26 July 2013. Upon the
expiry of contractual indemnity on 26 July 2013, there were no
indemnity raised by the acquirer of HTGH, a reversal of indemnity
liabilities arising from the disposal of interest in associate amounted to
$30,024,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

A4k M Y |
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $'000 $°000 $000
—f@H N Within 1 month 28,378 35,104 1,792 1,960
— & =R A 1 to 3 months 3,433 9,230 - _
=Z N H Over 3 months but within
6 months 48 349 - _
oS A Over 6 months 769 1,177 = -
32,628 45,860 1,792 1,960

2013/14 &
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AT B X 24 Bank overdrafts
S G 1 4R AT 2 3 09 JE T AE AT R - The analysis of the carrying amount of unsecured bank overdrafts is as
follows:
A4
Group
2014 2013
$°000 $000
— A R BY 22 00 S0 B R Repayable within one year or on demand
(B} 5% 55 22(a) TH) (note 22(a)) 16,803 4,071

e g Lt e e S I &
AR ] BT A SR AT 1R BB OR M A A
W5 240 Aok F

0 BB kR A

7 A5 ] 7 4 B G e A R A wE Bk
By 2 B - K AR5 A s COR A3 1% 91) 1
Z A B # T s M R A w75 RR 4
wHE D) o A A R B Ty — R e R
REr& > BB Z st N B HE - R
mEaEH EEAEESAKEESR
B Z 5% aZar SIE Bt & A/
Bl A 2 L BR 250007 (% — 4
75 A #ii £ 20,00000) © 6] 3% w5F &) AE B 2 it
Oy BB B e -

75 o B0 85 A BT RS 2 WY R A R 2 m
B B £ b B R A 2 S E I OR R
FEE o 8% 55 AR ST R B IR AR A BR -
I6] 5% wh B4 2 3K B IR i Jag o

— WIAE & ¥ S 2 W 25 AR 0 M (35
) 5 ) 2 B — R A P
0 2t A 2 0 © 3 T
G 2 2% W < it B A A WS R
TR 2 W SO0 T A
I 2 (s 4 0D 56519 B 1 4 4 7
i85 -

Jbe R &5 5 22 B

ApF R FENAELA A+ = HRM
W J HE RH 3 PR ML AR N R GE O R
AR E BT A RN RE > BEA
AR AT & Al 2 HE > DU A A
it HE DA B8 W AR 2 W 22 e Ay o % S B I RE
B H 1R 4 30 K5 g - i HAR 4R
WA T AT o B TE M BCHE A R AR
E RE I AR 2 ] — e 3 20 M B DA JBE AR S AR -
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As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s banking facilities were
not subject to the fulfilment of any financial covenants.

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000
($20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

Subsidiaries established in the PRC participate in the defined
contribution retirement schemes operated by the PRC government for
employees in the PRC. Contributions to these schemes are charged
to profit or loss when incurred. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local Labour
Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of wages
and salaries paid. The scheme is not material to the Group and,
therefore, the disclosures required by HKAS 19, Employee benefits,
issued by the HKICPA have not been presented.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options at nil consideration
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The options vest after 4 to 30
days from the date of grant and are then exercisable within a period
of ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

Vil B¢ A Vi B¢ A
i )8 10k & YH
Vesting Contractual Number of
conditions life of options options
MR T E L Options granted on
—HttA: 17 January 2005:
-®TEE - to employees i H 30 H + 4 35,000
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
(b) i IR HE S H B REF S 1T 660 2 T (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options
are as follows:
2014 2013
m B 3 JOE B HE M2y Vi 15 HE
A7 4 5 HH (REEL HH
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
$ ('000) $ (000)
) RATE 2 M HE  Outstanding at the beginning
of the year 12.10 35 12.10 1,120
A AT 2 I R Exercised during the year _ _ 12.10 (1,085)
A [ Bk 2 I R RE Lapsed during the year 12.10 (5) _ _
ERRATMH 2 BEBEHE  Outstanding at the end
of the year 12.10 30 12.10 35
ERA[ AT 2 BERCHE  Exercisable at the end
of the year 12.10 30 12.10 35

e Rt =V T 3
P 7 £ 2 B R HE 2 7 0 11 22

6 B A8 B 251370 ©

W oFE MR - == A
= — B LR R R A RE -

AT R —PUAE = H = — B RAT
JBEHE 22 0 A P 2 4 A A 121000 (.
T— ZA4E 0 12.1070)  IHESE R i &

HIAERR F50.884E (& —=4F 1 1.884F) »

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options for the year ended 31 March 2013 was $25.13.

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no share
options were granted.

The options outstanding at 31 March 2014 had a weighted
average exercise price of $12.10 (2013: $12.10) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.88 years (2013: 1.88 years).
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27 HERBEZ NGB
(a) 7 £ A4 76 B3 2 K ) B 4 B8 2 -

7 4 % 2 )
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $000 $000 $'000
AR A A 1S BLMEH  Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year 24,528 28,678 93 275
O 4R 15 B Provisional Profits Tax paid (8,176) (32,274) (197) (4095)
16,352 (3,596) (104) (130)
DUTE AR 2 R4S B Balance of Profits Tax provision
HE {5 B %1 relating to prior years 20,463 6,952 = _
ok DL AL b [ B JE HEHS Provision for tax outside
Hong Kong 7,989 13,214 - -
AW REAS 7 (R 1)) Current tax payable/
wiE (recoverable) 44,804 16,570 (104) (130)
V. 2 /3 Analysed as follows:
78 WA A AR [m] o IE Current tax recoverable (2,838) (25,206) (104) (130)
A ) R A B I Current tax payable 47,642 41,776 _ _
44,804 16,570 (104) (130)
(b) L i3 A 1T B JH B A A A - (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
() AE£HE i)  Group
CREEEEABERMRZIE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
FEBIE (K ) A KA in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
EESEB T movements during the year are as follows:
Al oA REEHZ
RBRZ Y LRIT/ES 1t ff H& A4 ¥ ]
Depreciation
in excess of
the related Revaluation Future
depreciation of benefit of
EHEBERA Deferred tax arising from: allowances properties Provisions tax losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
REZF-ZFNA-H A1 Api 2012 (3,609) 4,480 (20,497) (21,326) (40,952)
e 56, 7 % Exchange adjustments (65) - 43 1145 1123
ERBEEIL/ GEA) Charged/(credited) to
(W & 5 7(a) ) profit or loss (note 7(@) 2,190 - 5,173 (17,170) (9,807)
MAENE VS Effect on change in tax rates
(W &5 7(0)R) (note 7(a) (114 _ - _ (114
WZE—-ZF=J=1—H At31March2013 (1,598) 4,480 (15,281) (37,351) (49,750)
REF—-ZENA—H At 1 April 2013 (1598) 4,480 (15,281) (37,351) (49,750)
W i ) Exchange adjustments 129 - (222) (3,024) (3,124)
ERHERIL/ GEA) Charged/(credited) to profi
(Bt 5 5 7(0)JR) orloss (note 7(a)) 730 - (774) (4,894) (4,939
MEugsvs Effect on change In tax rates
(W35 5 710) ) (note 7(a) (160) - - 524 364
WZZ—NWE=A=+—H At31March2014 (906) 4,480 (16,277) (44,745) (57,448)

27 Income tax in the statements of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the statements of financial position represents:

2013/14 Annual Report
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27 ¥ E B R Z B 15 BL (80

(b) 7 3% 4B 7L Bl I & i A1 - ()
iy AAFA

O A B & A R R 2 R B
B AR MAAE E B T

27 Income tax in the statements of financial position

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i)  Company

The deferred tax liabilities recognised in the statement of
financial position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

BB KA :

W FE— AU H—H

TE 18 15 51 57

W oE—-ZHEZA=Z+—H

W_F—=HFMH—H
TE 18 2 7H A

W oFE-WE=ZH=+—H
iy HEEEEABE

LR il

i 15 % B i
Depreciation allowances
in excess of the related

Deferred tax arising from: depreciation

$000
At 1 April 2012 62
Charged to profit or loss 53
At 31 March 2013 115
At 1 April 2013 115
Credited to profit or loss (37)
At 31 March 2014 78

(iiy  Reconciliation to the statements of financial position

EEEABERNMEZ 2 Net deferred tax asset

I S T T 4

EEERAMBENHERZ  Net deferred tax liability

0 S B TH A AR

A% 45 y: N/
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
recognised in the
statement of financial
position (62,357) (54,050) - -
recognised in the
statement of financial
position 4,909 4,300 78 115
(57,448) (49,750) 78 115

(c) R HE R 2 W At Bl I &
A8 35 B 56 1 () TH 2 & wHBUK > A 4R
B Rt B TR R 1H118,229,0000T (—
F— =4 1 115,683,000 C) filE 58 5 IE
HIE Bl TH K FE R AE A BB A T
AT 3 e 48 S ORI BE D6 ok R
A o

(¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $118,229,000 (2013: $115,683,000) as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions.
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27 ¥ E B R Z P15 B (80

(c) IR MR Z ¥ 4t Bl JH & & (#4)
AR —HEZH =+ —H > A%
B K il R B T s 1 A 0 T B TE

27 Income tax in the statements of financial position

(continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised (continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses, whose expiry dates are:

HC T i B0

A

Group
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
E_F—NF+_H In December 2018 1,518 -
BT ER FAEEM Do not expire under current tax legislation 116,711 115,683
118,229 115,683

(d) KR 0EERIH A F
o E—-NEZHA=Z+—H F1
i R 2 B A R R OUR B i R 2
I Mk 25 %8 & 61,420,000 70 (& — =
4 1 33,583,000 00 ) o BN AN ) HE
il 5% B JE N\ 2 B R B > i % B
| /N I NS = e I 3 T =
AN UR B i A o A S R e R vT g A
5y UR 7% % R B s AT A AR B TR W
e 2 4% S F T A F £ 3,071,000 00 (-
X — Z4F 1 1,679,0007C) °

2013/14 Annual Report

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2014, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries based in the PRC amounted
to $61,420,000 (2013: $33,583,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
$3,071,000 (2013: $1,679,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends

A AR B 2 AR A R AR P IR 1Y AR A
B AR AR B f 6 4 A ) 2R R K
AN A 224 fIE HE 2 5 40 B AR D AR

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the

IR B ) R A AN changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
A A ] Company
B A
Wi Bea B EE REEG  RARE  REEN ik
Capital
Share Share redemption Capital  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
REZ-Z4NA—H Balance at 1 April 2012 82,389 281,688 4,646 2149 1251518 1,622,390
[ YLK Changes in equity:
AR i R A T Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 543,041 543,041
TE BB RERT B R 847 M Shares isstied under share
option scheme 28(c)(i) 543 14,643 - (2,083) - 13,103
BEFEEHEREMRE Dividends approved and paid in
respect of the previous year 28(0)(i) - - - - (196,146)  (796,146)
REECERKE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 28(0)() - - - - (41466)  (41.466)
BEF-ZHEZA=4—H Balance at 31 March 2013
R=F—ZHENA—H and 1 April 2013 82932 296,331 4,646 66 956,947 1,340,922
RS Changes in equity:
R ES € Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 197337 197,337
B e K Lapse of share options 26b) - - - 0 9 _
BEFEECHMERTHEE  Dividends approved and paid in
respect of the previous year 28(0)() - - - - (132691)  (132,691)
CA-NEZHZRER Transition to no-par value regime
T (A R 0 on 3 March 2014 28(0) 300977 (296331  (4646) _ - _
AEFCERES Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 28(0)) - - - - 1466 (41466)
RZ%Z—-W4E==+—~H  Balanceat31 March 2014 383,909 , - 5 980136 1364102
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) B (b) Dividends
() A A BEREAS 2 B AT AR 2N W) RE 3 ()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
i i P= attributable to the year
2014 2013
$°000 $'000
IR S A R R Interim dividend declared and paid of 25 cents
5 i i 254l (2013: 25 cents) per ordinary share
(=% — =4 B 25 ) 41,466 41,466
ARG B R H BB E 2R AS  Final dividend proposed after the end of
i 5. 4 A% 45 1 80 il the reporting period of 80 cents
(ZF—=4F - & isofl) (2013: 80 cents) per ordinary share 132,691 132,691
174,157 174,157

T A HOR BAR ek IR 2
AR e B R TE A

il w8 7y AUfE -

(i) kb B AR RE E A A A TR (i)
i J5e SR A B (T 7R 45 A 2 4t

WMARHA
the reporting period.

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting
period have not been recognised as a liability at the end of

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

W& E ) during the year
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
A B AR B A I R 2 Special dividend in respect of the previous
5 B R 5 3 A B % e financial year, approved and paid during
(ZE—=F FR41) the year, of $Nil (2013: $4) per ordinary share - 663,455
FMMBEREZ R BIREE K Final dividend in respect of the previous
T80l (EL 5 4F 1A 4 41t i financial year, approved and paid during
LB (CF— =4 the year, of 80 cents (2013: 80 cents)
80l per ordinary share 132,691 132,601
132,691 796,146
(c) BA (c) Share capital
() EEKkeBEITRA ()  Authorised and issued share capital
2014 2013
B ¥ i %
No. of shares No. of shares
('000) $°000 ('000) $'000
WM (W3E1%)  Authorised: (note 1)
45 1B i (E.0.50 70 % 98 Bk Ordinary shares of $0.50 each
(W 3% 56 278) (note 2) - - 200,000 100,000
CBAT B 8 R A Ordinary shares, issued and
Hak: fully paid:
A —H At 1 April 165,864 82,932 164,779 82,389
1E W I st R Shares issued under the
AT share option scheme - - 1,085 543
ZF— 4= A = H A E Transition to no-par value regime
TR (% 4 W B (W32 45 336)  on 3 March 2014 (note 3) - 300,977 _ _
R=A=+—H At 31 March 165,864 383,909 165,864 82,932

2013/14 Annual Report




28 A -

W B i & B 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 3 45 B 5 4F - # L1t o€ % 717~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

it i B Jbe B\ (80

(c) MA (%)

M

(i)

(i)

28 KB AT IRAS (F8)
W 3 -
() eds o 7 s 4 7 e 0 (622 ) >

18 =% — DU = = F R
¥ S M 0 B LA A

@ BB oEFE-WE=ZH=H4E%
Z O A s s\ R B (6227 ) AR
1351 » A% 28 ) B Oy AS 1A 5 E
ENRERENIACY Faak  Eegiigie g
AT o] P S 17 AH S A I A B o

(B AT E—UAEZHZH > REER
A s A T e 0] (55 622 7)) I 2 11
255 37 11 AR U A S o I i A
% S AR i ( fk 1 AT AT 6805 5 85
(S5 T N/ L N O Rl i B

e B AN A RO I E
RS BERA—BHA
— RN E Gk b B
Fir A7 A B ¥4 3 A 4 R BR
FE A ] % e AR o

o S B HE B T S AT B

W oFE—-=F=A=+—HI1
A BE R AR A\ A 1,085,000 1
e HE A8 15 47 (1 B A
13,103,000 7t » H 1 543,000 7.
A A > # %6 12,560,000 JG 5
A A i 5 B AR 4 T A s S A
o ) (55 32 %) 55 48B - 1R 4%
B 5 55 1 (r) i) JEL BT ok 2 & T BUSR

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(¢) Share capital (continued)

U

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)
Notes:

1) Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which
commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised
share capital no longer exists.

2 In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no longer have a par or
nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact on
the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
members as a result of this transition.

(t¢)] In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account and the capital redemption reserve has become part
of the Company’s share capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2013, options were
exercised to subscribe for 1,085,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a consideration of $13,103,000 of which
$543,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
$12,560,000 was credited to the share premium account in
accordance with section 48B of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). An amount of $2,083,000
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share

2,083,000 7G H i 4% ff #5 B 2| premium account in accordance with policy set out in
J i A R note 1(r)(i.
A B R H OOk B B R ok AT (i)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
i 2 T T 2 M K end of the reporting period
2014 2013
A7 1 HH HH
Exercise price Number Number
$
A7 14 39 1A Exercise period
ZEZAFEZATAEE 16 February 2005 to
“FE-AF_HTHH 15 February 2015 12.10 30,000 35,000

B TEME R 2 R N3 RERR
W AR 2% ] — M A e R% G B
Jie HE 2 B 2 R AR SO BB R
Bif 5 55 26 35

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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JU\

(d) fif i Z Pk B K &

(e)

0y

() O 5 e A AR T (o] fik A

AT —PU4 = H = H LA i
9 Yik f e B A B[] £ A 1) P 3 A
Al 32 5 3 9 28 7 A 1 55 48B i I
S5 AQH MR BT B RE o 4 BN . F
—AEZAZHAERZ B FEN
Al (55 6222) B 311 2 5587
A6 11 408 95 P A6 S o T 0 Vi A TR
2 A [ ot A 1 AT AT T A A
E&E¢UVWk¢m—¢M%

38 B 5 55 28(c) JH) © A —F — U 4R
ZH=ZHUE &ﬁmm@ Ed]
HA s A ARG (35622%) AT o

(i) A b A

%$ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ux)
TE BT O B A A K R A 2 & sT
BT R O % T A 4 8 #
& B 2 B B el 5 R AT 6 2 i

BERESLH A fofH -

(i) 4 FE f5f
A BE fig e 61 15 7 B0 A 8
MR P 2L 2 B A B S 25 -
AR R ALNREE AV Pl
& wh R R B -

(iv) T Hb R #E 5 Ak (E f7 e
- Hb R B A B A T % B R
EANHEF 2 ABEBEEA N2
T Hb K A8 AN (E W & SR R
ST B

] 43 IR fik

B oFE—PE=ZH =+ —H o R

B A& A F R (55 622 %) (6 H0 ET
= NN/ I I £ o T G N/
5 N o #5 38 % 7% 980,136,000 7
(& — = 4F 1 956,947,000 JC )  Jit
$ﬁ%%*ﬂ& HHEAERIREAR
W SR B B so il (& — =
¢~mmwﬁ%%wuwpmmug
ﬁ—; 132,691,000 7t ) ( Kt &% &5
28(b)H) ° &% B B A A 5 K H M
%ﬁmﬁﬁh

& A 5 B
ALEEREAR L TEAERRE
7S [ I 40 A A R A A R TR A
R8T 375 At B JEL B K SF- AH B R 2 7
e JI 85 7 (8 LA B %2 BRLSOAS S A Tl S
Eo R T N R
HH B A A 4R
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

0]

(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve was governed
by sections 48B and 49H respectively of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve has become part of the Company’s share
capital (see note 28(c)). The use of share capital as from 3
March 2014 is governed by the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

(i)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
the directors and employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(r)(ii).

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1(v).

(v)

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set up
and will be dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for the revaluation of land and buildings held
for own use (note 1(j)).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) was $980,136,000 (2013:
$956,947,000). After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend of 80 cents (2013: 80 cents) per ordinary
share, amounting to $132,691,000 (2013: $132,691,000) (note
28(b)). These final dividends have not been recognised as liabilities
at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

Capital management (continued)
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose, the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from 2013, was to maintain a relatively
low net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2014 and 2013
was as follows:

TiE A

— B A R K e At B A 3K

—RITBEX

fi B A

il 313 s

W B kR eEHEY
85 ¥

1 4 B 7R

W IR A B

L R3S

106 25 ¥ 750 400
BEAR R

Current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables
- Bank overdrafts

Total debt
Add: Proposed dividends

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Less: Proposed dividends
Adjusted capital

Net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio

AEH Y, A

Group Company
Ff 5k 2014 2013 2014 2013
Note $°000 $000 $°000 $'000
23 160,009 253,816 65,841 44,711
24 16,803 4,071 = -
176,812 257,887 65,841 44,711
280)() | 132,691 132,691 132,691 132,691
22(a) | (621,455) (656,144) = (406,559) (435,233
N/A N/A N/A N/A
1,574,471 1516453 1,364,102 1,340,922
28()) = (132,691) (132,691)  (132,691)  (132,691)
1,441,780 1,383,762 1,231,411 1,208,231
N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ay w) S FAT ] B )88 2 W) 2 AR &% S
Al e 2 A AR E BR A

B E-MER F - =ZF=H
=t—R HEeEkBREEHYER
U5 AR B AR IR A I S ) AR o PRI
RO 1 R A A B A L A U o

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, cash and cash equivalents were
in excess of the aggregate of total debt and proposed dividends.
Therefore, net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio is not presented.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities
and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, listed equity securities, debt investments and deposits
with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk only arise if the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

Investments in equity securities are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and placement of bank
deposits are normally with counterparties that have sound credit
ratings. Therefore, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting
any impairment allowance. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in note 31, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group or
the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
in respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 31.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 21.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following shows the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

WiEE
AREH Group
& AR WG B B4l
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—4EN ZH=+—H
B 45 Pk s A 3 MR A
Within 1 year or Carrying amount
on demand Total at 31 March
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
AT E X Bank overdrafts 16,803 4,071 16,803 4,071 16,803 4,071
JRE A5F B 3k Trade creditors 30,836 43,900 30,836 43,900 30,836 43,900
JE A5 2 % Bills payable 1,792 1,960 1,792 1,960 1,792 1,960
e Ath 1 AT 3K Other payables and
K JE 51 2 accrued charges 100,331 126,831 | 100,331 126,831 | 100,331 126,831
5B AR R A S Indemnity liabilities = 30,024 = 30,024 = 30,024
JRE £ [ Amounts due to
NG/ @] related companies 1,196 1,385 1,196 1,385 1,196 1,385
150,958 208,171 | 150,958 208,171 | 150,958 208,171

4 1B 45 5L 48 %1  Derivatives settled gross:

72 W 4 RE 5 TR
— — outflow
—mA — inflow

Forward exchange contracts

FHERMBIGBERA(H )

Contractual undiscounted cash inflow/(outflow)

—4F P S 3 ikl
Within 1 year or on demand Total
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
- (100,736) - (100,736)
- 100,115 - 100,115
= (621) - (621)
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29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

AR A ] Company
&R WG B B4
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—4ERN =i =S4p=1¥
o 3% 8 M b % £ A 2 MR i A
Within 1 year or Carrying amount
on demand Total at 31 March
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
JRE A+ 2 5 Bills payable 1,792 1,960 1,792 1,960 1,792 1,960
Ho A HE 45} 3K B2 Other payables and
JE =& T accrued charges 7,381 10,489 7,381 10,489 7,381 10,489
R E A Indemnity liabilities - 30,024 - 30,024 - 30,024
JE A B 2S 7 Amounts due to
HIH subsidiaries 56,500 2,016 56,500 2,016 56,500 2,016
JE £+ B 48 4N W Amounts due to
IH related companies 168 222 168 222 168 222
65,841 44,711 65,841 44,711 65,841 44,711

TR ERMBMBEREA G

Contractual undiscounted cash inflow/(outflow)

—AE N B B
Within 1 year or on demand Total
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
A5 2 1. B Wy 4% 5584 %1 © Derivatives settled gross:
72 A A1 B A (R Forward exchange contracts
— v - outflow - (100,736) - (100,736)
—WA — inflow - 100,115 = 100,115
- (621) - (621)

(c) Fm kg
AR 2 ) By A FRATIE S
I R i N i = S N S
Al R % Bl 4 A A R B K o e (E
) 25 Ja By o A SR B B L[ E A 2
Jo ] 8 R S K I S
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Jig B 2 A A TR SR ME DL S AT
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank overdrafts.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its fixed
rate and variable rate borrowings and manages the contractual
terms of the interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management is set
out below:
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(c) Fl 2 Jm B (%) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
() FEAE N () Interest rate profile
T R FEH AL E 2SR AR W The following table details the interest rate profile of the
HHARH Z R R - Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
AR 4K 1
Group
2014 2013
BB A E % ME BEBRAR% A
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% $’000 % $°000
W8 R R £ Variable rate borrowings:
RATHE X Bank overdrafts

(i) BORE M

AZE—MNEZH=+—H:
B 5% T A At 5 AR B R A
FlREEH T BE 10018 5 B
A N S il R )
I Je £ 88 B R W &
112,000 76 ( % — = 4 : 27,000
T6) o &E A HE g 2 H A E S A
@I%UZ’E%‘%@L}%/TVWX
Etlp-2 o

Lﬁ@@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$¢@2%
B A% i A (e R B i A B AR A
%mZE%%‘IﬂK“ﬁﬁ

fE 7 2R 2 B W A B o MR
“ﬁ& SR 2 5 B R A R
KHECREEAE I MR EN
A SR B A A A
IR B A 42 B B o (e
HE bz A TOH o BN A
S HR FHEOH BT A 2 % B A
REMETHRFELEZB &R
A A JE B A SR M2 BR B AR
A (B B B S L) S AR 5 HE 4R 2
ﬁm%%ZwEEUIMKW
B AR 2 AF AL R R S Bk
W AAEAf FHe T — = AR )
M 4% [7] — S HEAEAT o

(d) A B
AL EW Je 2 SR By E 'R AW
B A by B A 2 A (B2 38 5 i 9F
DA B SEB5 2 T he & W A7) J B A
2 MBS IR A M A R R S B B A AT o
ISR bz B R R T
Jegk - BT AR HE -

(d)

1.53 16,803 1.51 4,071

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $112,000 (2013: $27,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected in response to
the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) and other components of equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Pound Sterling (“GBP”),
Euros, Renminbi Yuan and Japanese Yen.

2013/14 &
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(d) SN B (%) (d) Currency risk (continued)
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As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) is pegged to the USD,
management does not expect any significant movements in the
USD/HKD exchange rate and considers the exposure to foreign
currency risk in relation to the USD to be low. However,
management acknowledges that it is exposed to fluctuations in
the exchange rate for other currencies and the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of the
Group’s entities whose functional currency is HKD, in either HKD
or USD. Given this, management does not expect that there will
be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.

()  Recognised assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that
economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit
or loss (see note 4). The net fair value of forward exchange
contracts used by the Group and the Company as economic
hedges of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at 31 March 2013 was $264,000,
recognised as derivative financial instrument, see note 18.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposures are shown in HKD, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

7 7 A1 R B (4) (i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued)
TR B (Do 7 3 7m)
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)
*7 Ko B N HE
United States Dollars  Pound Sterling Euros Renminbi Yuan Japanese Yen
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000

A%H Group
TR SR JAL K Trade and other receivables 4303 9863 6664 2131 1595 3121 2535 34100 8675 11573
LR EE AL Cash and cash equivalents 2050 104160 310 67 17883 8500 300874 181659 19124 1573
TR LB RT3 Trade and other payabes (6,334) (8364 (835 (1612 (33711) (18906  (1,739) 93 m @55
CHEAERR Gross exposure arising

ARTEEZ from recognised assets

ARER and icbittes 99 10560 613 56 16107 (19 G 205675 2472 850
il ol Notional amount of forward

EIMNESR 2 exchange contracts used

hEAR as economic hedges - (10073) - _ . _ - 100115 ; ;
CHEAERR Net exposure arising from

ARTEE L recognised assets and

B abilties 99 493 6139 586 16107 (7,196 391671 315790 20,792 8591
ARH Company
R A B SRS Trade and other receivables - 39 - _ 9 S o149 0 ; }
RERREFRN  Cashand cash equivalents 31 100992 1 112007 3808 349460 134948 17343 608
PERH IRk ROBBERT 2t Trade and other payables - - Y S (e ; } ) )
EEAEER Gross exposure arising flom

AEMEEL recognised assets and

AR tH ebies W06 @M 1 NG 217 %08 1% 17M3 6
il Notional amount of forward

ERAMEARZ exchange contracts used

REER s economic hedges - (10073) - _ - i - 01t ; }
CHEAERER Net exposure arising from

AlTEEL recognised assets and

ELi biftes B 205 (83 105 2137 350889 2533 1733 608
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29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rates between the HKD and the USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the USD against other currencies.

Es Pound Sterling
ik 7T Euros
N Renminbi Yuan

H [ Japanese Yen

bR P BURE o A AR AR
4 A R R AR Ol R B
fia il ShRE B W kB (s 23R B
B % A i R B 2 BE 3 5
7V TT) 2 AR T BR B AR i A A
fiE i 2 BIVIRE& F S 2 -

TR 23 M RS AN T BE R 2
vl NS NG T N SE
F A A A i WK B A 5
B T A R B 2 R T B
G 53 B A 45 1 7 s DA SE 8
B ERME AL B
FIEWITE A2 2R &
— AR T R [A] — SE MR EAT o
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A SR
Group

2014 2013
A % B8 B i F K PR
BE % WAz e % i A1l 2
L7t/ ¥im, et 4 WA/
(F¥%) () (F B B
Increase/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in profit (decrease) profit after
in foreign after tax in foreign tax and
exchange and retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
% $000 % $000
5 259 5 25
() (259) () (25)
5 794 5 (230)
(5) (794) (5) 230
5 19,575 5 14,683
(5) (19,575) (5) (14,683)
5 1,318 5 369
(5) (1,318) (5) (369)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.
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(e) Equity price risk

AEEERZ I BHBAFEFZ £

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed

T A T 7 A 2 A R (2 equity investments classified as trading securities (see note 19).
3] Bff 5 55 19 JH)
A2 bl RE RS S The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock Exchange

S IR\ (THsg e ) B e HA
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of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Decisions to buy
or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the Hang
Seng Index and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of industry
distribution, in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that changes in the relevant
stock market index (for listed investments) with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) as follows:

ALEH
Group
2014 2013
BB R BLAZ
e A K AR B it A1 K AR B

A B BB wAZ AR ER i Fl 2
S Ym, Wom, #usm,/ s,

(W 4) (W 4) () (W )
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)
(decrease) in profit Increase/ in profit
in the after tax (decrease) after tax
relevant and in the and
risk retained relevant risk retained
variable profits variable profits
% $°000 % $'000
Bt bz Stock market index
B vl g ¥ - in respect of listed
investments:
18 A4 45 B Hang Seng Index 5 70 5 72
&) (70) () (72)

0 2 B2 O3 AT BEUR > R RO AR i A
KA BTG e Mo B H e
T R R A AR T R AR A )
IR B A SR T A B
TR R B Y BR AR M (%
PR B iR F)) AT BE B A0 RV IRF A B o IR
B R AS B2 | B AR B8 2 8 A AEIF R
953 T B AT B B i 4 o A B R T
ek s g H o — U1 H At 8 RO HE Ry
A5 o W o T )G A B T — AR T
22 A [ 2 A AT

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2013.

2013/14 £
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f) s~
() ~SARBEARZ&RETE
I3 70 M8 4E
TREFNALEE SR TR A

FUAE > % 5F & T OE R AR
WK B W e R et &> 3
o R T A i T A HE RIS 13
UARASOR W SR At 3
N RAERME S RERE D
M EMTI S F T 7
EIR N & P R )3
R AR O

— O HRAGE EE S
A A B (R &F & A [
BE B R I BT
ZRBHBERE FFR A
fE

— B ERAGE: N 8
iy A BOPR (R fE 22 21 58 —

U

29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1inputsi.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level

AR TR -3 TN & YIS 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
A AH A E RS W] B BR) Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
FHE 2N R E o A u] B 5% are not available
WA T AT A
K2 g
— HEEMANE A ERA - Level 3valuations: Fair value measured using significant
AEEEES R A RE unobservable inputs
2014 2013
AEH AR A /N
Group Company Group Company
B—H BB B-H BB % H-4% H-% %H-%
A RHE Recurring fair value Level1 Level2 Levell Level2 Levelt Level2 Levell  Level2
i measurements $°000 $000 $°000 $°000 $000  $000 $000 $000
jefi Assets
ME4MTE:  Dervative financial instrument:
— B MSME AT fE - Forward exchange contracts - - - - - 064 - 64
BEMRZHS  Treding securities 1,670 - 1670 - 1715 - 1715 -
1,670 - 1,670 - 1,715 264 1,715 264

REE R —UE R R — =
EZHZ=Z+—HILEE REH
— A BLES A 2[R A RS o
AL BRI E AR
5 1R M RR A o (H 22 R 2
) R

JH B 8k o A E At A A (E
1l 12 g A B

W=t — A
55 0 SN BE 2 40 24 A0 (AR T
SRR TSR T (5 -
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During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which they
oceur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair values of forward exchange contracts as at 31 March
2013 in Level 2 were marked to market using quoted market
prices from financial institutions.
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29 4 MBS A OB KA A E (8 29 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

f) 4Rl (4H) (f) Fair value measurement (continued)
(i) UKNARELIARZ &/ THE (i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
2 el value
JE Wi R AR BEE R W) B R A The amounts due from/to subsidiaries and related companies
Al FRIE TY o B A R O are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Given
- FA A ERE  TRER - these terms, it is not meaningful to measure its fair value. All
Jir A7 H A 4 T EL Y A B other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at
FE—IE K - E— =44 =A amounts not materially different from fair values as at 31
=t —AZARENEERER - March 2014 and 2013.
30 7K ¥ 30 Commitments
(a) R-F—WE=ZH=+—H R# (a) At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
WA SRR A B H %2 under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
RAGA BT F -
7 45
Group
2014 2013
L/E S H fib LES Aty
Properties Others  Properties Others
$°000 $’000 $’000 $'000
— AR Within 1 year 244,787 632 130,052 831
—AERAA AR After 1 year but within 5 years 199,538 2,383 99,124 1,420
HAER After 5 years 11,568 = - -
455,893 3,015 229,176 2,251
b) R_F—WE=ZH="+—H R (b) At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments under
AA R EM A HEBEEMNZ non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are payable
B EME N K EEET - as follows:
AR A H
Company
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
— A4 A Within 1 year 7,830 5,256
—HEZEREN After 1 year but within 5 years 15,660 _
23,490 5,256
O - 1= i o N i =77 e A ) Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land held under operating
FEAE13IH - leases are described in note 13.
A BIARKERNERAEZWER The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and office
NS & Pl N = % i = ] equipment held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
s 2 = 00 AT ME 8 A B initial period of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease
H % 48 8 > T IR BT A3 4% 3 2 nl 258 0 2 - upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.
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30

31

32

7R ¥ (8)

bl 3% T OR AT B 2 ) 3 AR LR A
RN A o BUAE A B AR &0 07 7 0 2 ik
AWM Gz L ARy ESRBIRAZ
12% £ 40% (- F — =4 1 12% F 34%) Uk
Bl F AR YwELENE 2 HEN
ANALAE B ZERYE 2 SR B AT K -

AR

o E-WNEZA=Z+—H ARXAE
B 2 gl BOAS SR AT A5 B 1] SR AT AR A
£ & %F50,010,000 0 ( = F — = 4
94,870,000 70) © A 5% 48 & (19 /A fo (E M 3%
HWRESIE > HHZ S EMK BF L AR
) S 40 A A AR AT AT AR ZE A o

RARHBMEMKE - FEEFARLALMAMD
BB RBEARANT A ATREER RME -
I NE e Sl = R NS/ I o T R
2 I BE B A B JE A | T B T 2 R
TEE > £ %/519,644,0007C (% — =4 :
4,476,000 7C) ©

EREBALRY

B £ A Bt 90 2% 5 A My P 9 2 5 5
o 860 9 A% S I8 K B AL AT
IRETE

(@) FTEEBRANEMWZS

R EE T Ny PN PE L
34 0 4 L Y 3 O 8 JE 3 -

(b) HRARAT RAAT R\ > HH & 2 A
Ll A m ([RILRAE M) HEAT
238 5 Bl H i SO 2 R (O
NEVE T E ST RS R IR AR

30

31

32

Commitments (continued)

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
included above are subject to contingent rent payments, which are
charged at amounts varying from 12% to 40% (2013: 12% to 34%) of
the monthly gross takings at the leased premises in excess of the base
rents as determined in the respective lease agreements. The above
disclosures in respect of operating lease commitments for properties
exclude contingent rent payments, which are not committed.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2014, the Company has issued guarantees to banks to
secure banking facilities granted by banks to the subsidiaries amounting
to $50,010,000 (2013: $94,870,000). The Company did not recognise
any deferred income in respect of the guarantees as the fair values
could not be reliably measured and its transaction price was $Nil.
Accordingly, the guarantees have not been accounted for as financial
liabilities and measured at fair value.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it
to be probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the guarantees issued. The maximum liability of the Company
at the end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is the
amount of banking facilities drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries
amounting to $19,644,000 (2013: $4,476,000).

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the directors of
the Company, and their remuneration is disclosed in note 8.

(b) Transactions with and amounts received from/paid to Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies
(“Yangtzekiang Garment Group”) (certain directors of the Company
are collectively the controlling shareholders of both the

] R A 4 ) 2 PERE R R - Yangtzekiang Garment Group and the Group):
2014 2013
$°000 $000
1 NG o R ) Purchases of garment products (note) 27,165 32,868
B AR R (B EE) Sales of garment products (note) 208 90
BT B A i e A 4 Rental expense paid and payable on
(B 5%) properties (note) 5,194 5,195
B AT B A A8 B Management fees paid and payable 804 304
EL AT B I AN K A Building management fees paid and
(Bff 5%) payable (note) 324 304
Mgk : HFHEFRBEFZHBALGERA R Note: As certain directors and their associates are collectively the controlling

VLA AR T B AR A T 2 P RE RO (i 26
WA AD - Ft s PR 5 RERA
S R AT A B (G 28 5L b i ML
SEA4ATE) o bl K R A 14A T T R E 1
WREFHERERGRETHELS ]
4%“
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shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Yangtzekiang Garment Group
and the Group, the above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section
“Connected transactions” in the Directors’ Report.
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32 EHERKBBALRE 5

(c) B&nBRARANF - HHEA A
Lignm (Ten%l)) (&aLH
Ha A AEE —FKW @A AW

32 Material related party transactions (continued)

(¢) Transactions with and amounts paid to Goldstone Development
Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies (“Goldstone
Group”) (Goldstone Group is beneficially interested in 35% of a

35% M 4 ) HEAT 2 58 5 Je S A I 4 subsidiary of the Group):
2014 2013
$°000 $000
N R R Purchases of garment products (note) 4,326 _
O A Je A 45 B 4% (F 5E) Management fees paid and payable (note) 540 _
©AF J% B A B WE 2% (B 5E)  Pre-operating service fee paid and payable (note) 158 _

BEFRE -l 4 A A T A SR I BN G
F& R B mHL) > bl 22 B A R bR
S AAT T 5 E B 5 A B S 5 - SR
T ey LTRSS 1 4ATE B ERALE

@ W_F—WE=ZA=+—HEMNEH

Note: As Goldstone Group is a connected person of the Group (as defined in the
Listing Rules), the above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however, they
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(d) Outstanding balances due to related companies as at 31 March

N A A ERAR 2014:
2014 2013
$°000 $000
JE W (FEAF) =70 Ak 45 ) Amounts due from/(to) Yangtzekiang
MIH > R Garment Group, net 2,769 (1,370)
JE A 4 7 S B JE > R AR Amounts due to Goldstone Group, net (351) _

SR N R 2 A5 BR T IR - 2 B
F i 708 0 B Iy R o

33 & 5k A B K A w

W 5E 55 13(c) ~ 14~ 15 M 29IH 7 Bl # A &
Mg mILEE- - HEHESH &
W% T H Z N S fE 2 8k K H R B R &
ZER o AR BN R 2 HoAh 2wy
maT

The outstanding balances with related companies are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

33 Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 13(c), 14, 15 and 29 contain information about fair value of the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties, fair value of intangible assets, lease premium and financial
instruments respectively. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

2013/14 & #]
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33 & 5l A B & 4 s (s

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

[ 4 B B~ JETE B e
Z 018

A R 5% 45 i AT g i [m)
W R OB A BWE - I AT 4R G
W B e ) 25 36 9E [ & I (e | e R
Wk E 1R o R BECGE W g R I 5B
369 #%SE BN R B A L
SR T Bk 2 W T (2 7T 8 08 3 i [ B
B2 3 A7 W (8 0 5 o R B BE
W BRF > U T 2 = ) i Il A o
A i [ g A A TR B B AR T (E
RO =R =k W R RN
EEMELEZHEBBE SR E T
FEHBE WA AR R HE
588 AR 4 AR R B e AR
£ 9 HE A BT A R OA B R DL 2 AT R
[ 4 BE ) A ST o SR1NT > ERRE =
BB 46 AR VT RE A AR R R
3G R BE ZH 57 R B 0 AR T (E F
W KM EEEE - MIEEE K
L& BE 2 A 09 PR R B T (E RE TS 4
FILTA B 35513 ~ 14 o A5 TE P 75 -

5] & ¥ 3 Z 37 8 % 4 971

] G A (2 B B Ak S5 13 TH) 78 H A
A AT AR IR AR R U
A AR B E )R E A AT T 4F
FRPF o A wd > DA BE GE S i 30 A BT
WO Bk B BT 6 B B B S o mT fi
AR YRR B A A T L E R
T A% B [ 2% 58 2 £ il 49 T 30 5 ) i
Tt o il BEL AR 7 A EOK o
o A U TH] 9 3 85 B S H T R

BEHR i 121 Js 1H

A S8 BB B N R IR AR BT 2H
A5 T B il R 4R EE 4R BE R Y
BE 1 A o A S T A R DY R R B RE
271 TE PG R WA B SR R B 2 R
fRUBE B A5 B RO T i A8 B R
B & B AR A R e A BB A
S IR D AL > BB O R T RE
Ak BT

% 77 &

ALEBESEREFRZ 00 HH
RACE W) 8 2 T K B 2 A
55 12 P B > S0 B AT B 2 MR T o
fisf 77 B 2 A w1 AT 5 B (E 2K 2 R
HEEWE WA EE G REENZ
RO A E 2 EE - BERES
ZEWAREEE HIREYHE
AE BEL A FF AN [R] > Tl FE 2 A H]
RER B NIRRT 2Bk -
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33 Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of fixed assets, intangible assets and lease premium

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these
assets may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered
“impaired” and an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volume, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which
may result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of
fixed assets, intangible assets and lease premium are disclosed
in notes 13, 14 and 15 respectively.

Depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets

Fixed assets (see note 13) are depreciated or amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation or amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows
on the ageing of the trade receivable balance as disclosed in note
21, debtors’ credit-worthiness and historical write-off experience.
If the financial condition of debtors were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections
of expected future saleability of goods and management
experience and judgement. Based on this review, a write down
of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable value
decline below their carrying amounts of inventories. Due to
changes in customers’ preferences and actual saleability of goods
may be different from estimation and the statement of profit or
loss in future accounting periods could be affected by differences
in this estimation.
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1 b A B K& A4l a0
(e) MEAEBAIE Vi 7 — BIE G 11 2 A HCF 2

R WS 5T 55 1(s) JH P i 2 & W UK
F A B A A R A T RETE A B
Z B T N D e A B A A W]
P 2 s 18 LIS 8 R oI B Rt i 1)
ALBEOHBEFLZ AR BIEE
15 e 5 A SE Bl TH A E o i B AR AR
A ELTA B VR AL - I 2 LR R B A
B A S 0 2 T A Y AR AE B TH B
EE it 8 % BT A5 B S

() WEWFEAE

AL B BCE Y SR SU(E Y iR S
B B AT 58 2 25 A B 3t [ AT AR B R
Y 8 8 1S R EAT T o W) SE Al
i bR FH ) A6k (80 D7 ¥ T3 6 1 1T 35 2 8
fifi 5% 55 i1 5 2 WOgE A AL I E
Wy 2 () Ak (1L 7 1% AR B o 5

e 0 % W kR g R

W FE—-PEWH Z+HH > ALK
— 5 MRS 2N W L 44 5 = WIS B ek
WA EENHAEYE &R EA
13,880,000 3% £ (#H ¥ Jjit 180,440,000 JC) °
W B TE Y —PUAE S H T H S o

g Y v

A T RE Wi B 3 M Ll B i 3T L IECR REA
B Y L 4 4% 42 36,657,000 7T E HE HT 4
KB IERE G = T W[ & Hea Lt
I & ARERNEm TR BEFTHER
75 3K RE S W & B 04 1 DRI DT RR o

LR B e 2 PR A )
RoE—NE=ZA=+—H #EFHERBE
AT RN R R R A E A S
Chan Family Investment Corporation
Limited » F 74 B & BF & 5T i iz o
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Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(e) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses as at the year end based on management’s assessment
that it is probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimates, such differences willimpact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.

(f) Valuation of investment properties

The fair value for the Group’s investment properties is calculated
by an independent firm of surveyors by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality. The valuation
model used by the property valuer makes use of market inputs.
Should changes be made to the market inputs, the corresponding
investment property valuations would change.

Non-adjusting event after the reporting period

On 25 April 2014, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement
with two third parties to acquire a leasehold property in the United
Kingdom at a cash consideration of GBP13,880,000 (equivalent to
$180,440,000). The acquisition was completed on 12 June 2014.

Comparative figures

Rental deposits paid of $36,657,000 included under “trade and other
receivables” have been reclassified as “rental deposits and
prepayments” under non-current assets to comply with the current
year’s presentation. The revised presentation reflects better the nature
and term of the balances.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 March 2014, the directors consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family Investment Corporation
Limited, which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

2013/14 & #]
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37 MMM REERE ~F—W 37 Possible impact of amendments, new standards

EZA=ZtHHIREEAERZ
BT~ B HE B R R R T GR JE
ZHE

CEES R S ESIL RN SR
2 fr B 2 SIS T R e L %
TR 0 R — 4R
b FOR AR B R R I R AR B
e AR A o A A T KA 1 B AL T 81
B S WA ) 2 OFH -

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
B TS H k2 % accounting periods
b s 19 1t 300 00 2 beginning on or after

(FilgaHEADFE325E (BT A) - (26
BE R A 2 )

(G FHENDH 395 (BT A) > [f7E
TREE XM E Gtk EH]

(BB RSAEADEIY (24 TA] FEEFMAEGMAAMN HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

A AR I Rl aZ 55 05 TR B UCRE T I8 1H]
B B ML AL R
EEICHIE R AUPS S ¥ Y TR TN
VUM R R B T REE RO e

BE AN > MR B A U (O R ) (55 622 )
HEOTBIIR B M w1 | 55 358k 2 Hifk > %
EARNFN - F—E=ZH =B KM
2 W B BCAE BE (R AR A R R =% — 1
P H — H B bR 2 B BUAE ) R R
PNE A S AR - 8 ]
WHE B WM 2 45 & M W £ >

pE-EEAM AL AEERAEA
BB ARKATRRBEKRE HEKLTE
WML A MR EER 2 2R KB -
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“E—NE—-H—H  Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial

“E—NE—-H—H  Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of

1 January 2014
assets and financial liabilities

1 January 2014
derivatives and continuation of hedge

accounting

Not yet established
by HKICPA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
from the Company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014
(i.e. the Company’s financial year which began on 1 April 2014) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily
only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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TEME R

Principal Subsidiaries

B E— A = H =+ — H At 31 March 2014

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

(31 AV
JB 3 B R
Place of
incorporation/
R establishment
Name of company and business
S Wi REA R il
Michel René Limited Hong Kong
RILA AR ik
YGM Marketing Limited Hong Kong
YGM Asset Management Limited % it
Hong Kong
BERABARAL A i
Crystal Castle International Limited ~ Hong Kong
A R ik
Bentwood Limited Hong Kong
YGMTH 530 & (M) HIRAT M
YGM Marketing (Macau) Limited Macau
RILTERA A i
YGM Clothing Limited Hong Kong
YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited 35 J& J& < it &
British Virgin Islands
RPN Rz BRA A hiEARLME
YGM Clothing (Dongguan) The PRC
Limited ###
M5 L E 5 R W o 3 AR E AN
Guangzhou Yangtzekiang Trading ~ The PRC
Company Limited #/###
URRINE XN YNk GE INTE L
YGM Trading Company Limited ### The PRC
Y (HEEEARA T PEARLAR
YGM Marketing (Shanghai) The PRC
Company Limited ###
BN ARG EHARA A s hEARLEME
Guangzhou Benyeung Trading The PRC
Company Limited ##/###
A A TR A R 2 BB IE LR
Aquascutum Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands
T A8 T P 0 R R ik
Aquascutum International Limited ~ Hong Kong
Aquascutum International %
Licensing Limited United Kingdom

LT R
BRBAER
Particulars

of issued and
paid up capital
HK$1,000,000

HK$2

HK$2

HK$500,000

HK$500,000

MOP100,000

HK$200

Us$2

HK$25,900,000

RMB500,000

US$1,000,000

US$1,000,000

RMB500,000

US$1

HK$2

GBP1

o A B A 2 R
Percentage of ownership interest
AEMZ  hART Hi
T % #H AARA
Group’s Held Held
effective by the by a
interest Company  subsidiary
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
65 - 65
100 - 100
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 100 -
100 - 100
100 - 100

FEEH

Principal activities

FRA At 3 K % 4
Garment wholesaling and retailing

BB PR IR BORA A B T
Investment holding, and garment
wholesaling and retailing

MERE

Property investment
KRR EE

Leather goods wholesaling and retailing
WEMBER LR ETER

Property leasing management and
investment holding

WK%
Garment retailing
A H 8
Garment wholesaling
BEER
Investment holding

FRAR A 7

Garment manufacturing

A B R
Garment wholesaling and retailing

A HE 5 R E
Garment wholesaling and retailing

AHE % R %
Garment wholesaling and retailing

FRAHE

Garment wholesaling

REHER
Investment holding

e 1 7

Trademark promotion

WA D G 7 AR

Trademark ownership and licensing



FTEME QA

Principal Subsidiaries

T E— A = H =+ — H At 31 March 2014

ek

Name of company

T M P A R 2 )
Aquascutum Limited

ek A (B ) A R R
Aquascutum (Hong Kong) Limited

Aquascutum (1851) Limited

Michel René Enterprises Limited

Luk Hop Garments Limited #

Squash International Limited #

WO B TR T #
Far East Gate Limited #

HEEARA 4
Parahood Limited #

Trothy Company Limited #

L2 REARA A #
Hong Kong Security
Systems Limited #

FE L RERIA R AT #
Hong Kong Security
Printing Limited #

Société Guy Laroche #

YGM Studio Limited

YGM Consortium Limited

i3 ) e

0 e 848 b
Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

i
Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

$

United Kingdom
" EBE TS
“* British Virgin Islands
i

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

EiE

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

EiE
Hong Kong

%

France

i
Hong Kong
i
Hong Kong

% £ip)d
B0 e A B
Particulars
of issued and
paid up capital

HK$2
HK$1,000
GBP1
US$50,000
HK$200
*HK$1,000
HK$2
HK$60,600,000
HK$6,000

HK$10,000

HK$2

HK$10,000

EUR1,239,000

HK$21,060,000
* HK$46,800,000

HK$2

JIF AT 8 AT IR AR 4 70 0 2 M M Rk R A A o (ELRL R A% SRR AP

ot A A 2 R
Percentage of ownership interest
AEMZ AR Hi Y I8
B 4 i AR
Group’s Held Held
effective by the by a
interest Company  subsidiary
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
68 68 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
9 9 -
80 80 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 100 -

All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:
Represent non-voting deferred shares.

*k

Represent non-voting preference shares.

AR 5 R B ¥ 488 1 Michel René Enterprises Limited ©

In addition, *** represents Michel René Enterprises Limited which operates in Taiwan.

# ARy S R L RS BT A R A e
#HOFEAVIESGEA NS IR LR SR E

%SO F o L A RS R S0 T B A 3

# Companies not audited by KPMG.

##  The English translation of the companies name are for reference only. The official name of the companies are in Chinese.

### These are wholly-owned investment enterprises registered in the PRC.

2013/14 Annual Report

FERH

Principal activities

SR B~ A AR R0 A AR
Investment holding, trademark
ownership and licensing

WA R %
Garment wholesaling and retailing

FRAC At 8 K % 4

Garment wholesaling and retailing

FRA AL K %
Garment wholesaling and retailing

ES18

Property investment

WERE
Property investment
ESI4
Property investment

ESP8

Property investment

ESH8

Property investment

BEE

Investment holding

IV B T 3 A A B
Provision of security printing and
general business forms printing

AT TR T 03 A3 AR A A
Trademark ownership and licensing,
and garment wholesaling

BE R

Investment holding

tiacgedle

Investment holding



TRADING LTD.

YGME ZHRAA

WWW.YGMTRADING.COM
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